
NOTICE 

VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA 

BOARD MEETING 
 

 

Date:   July 13, 2021 

Time: 6:00 pm CST 

Place: Board Room (310 Chieftain Street) & 

 Virtual GoToMeeting 

 

In an effort to support community health management initiatives surrounding the COVID-19 pandemic, 

this meeting is also available virtually through a web-based/telephone meeting platform called “GoTo 

Meeting”. Please follow the instructions on the posted agenda to listen and/or participate during the 

meeting. 

 
TO JOIN BY VIDEO 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/580100189  

 

TO JOIN BY PHONE  

United States: +1 (571) 317-3122 Access Code: 580-100-189  

 

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/580100189 

 

 

1. Call to order 

2. Approval of the agenda   

3. Approval of the minutes: 

a) Regular meeting dated June 8, 2021 

4. Public input and ideas (Limit 5 minutes per speaker)  

5. Reports: 

a) Staff reports  

i. Administration  

ii. Police  

iii. Public Works 

iv. Utilities 

v. Library  

vi. Fire  

vii. Building Inspection 

b) Chamber of Commerce/Mainstreet 

6. Other business – discussion and possible action re: 

a) Appointment of Roxy Patter to the Room Tax Commission (3-year term) 

b) Site plan review for 108 Chieftain Street (Hauge Dental) 

c) Site plan review for 206 N. Cascade Street (Coming Home) 

7. Permits and Licenses: 

a) Class B Beer 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/580100189
tel:+15713173122,,580100189
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/580100189


Page | 2  

i. Oyster, LLC d/b/a St. Croix Valley Inn – Timothy Patterson, Agent 305 River Street  

b) Temporary Class B Beer and Wine 

i. Osceola Chamber of Commerce for Osceola Harvest Bazaar on September 11, 2021 

c) Operator Licenses 

i. Temporary-Kristen Murphy, Amanda Simenstad, Paul Smith – Osceola Harvest 

Bazaar 

ii. Wesley Berg – Osceola Lanes 

iii. James Husnik – Valley Spirits/BP 

iv. Jessica Johnson - PYs 

d) Special Event Permit 

i. 2021 Community Fair/Parade (Scott Tinney, Agent) 

ii. 2021 Wheels & Wings (Kyle Weaver, Agent) 

e) Conditional Obstruction Permits 

i. Adoray’s Treasures From The Heart 

ii. Coming Home Osceola, LLC 

iii. Karita’s  

iv. Uptown Gifts, LLC 

v. The Looking Glass 

vi. The Sleepy Thicket 

vii. Croixland Leather Works 

8. Board, Committee, Commission and Agency Reports: 

a) Police & Fire Committee January 29, 2021 (Commission approved June 24, 2021) 

b) Planning Commission May 4, 2021  (Commission approved July 6, 2021) 

c) Library Board  May 13, 2021   (L. Board approved June 10, 2021) 

d) Historic Preservation May 14, 2021   (Commission approved July 7, 2021) 

e) Airport Commission May 17, 2021   (Commission approved June 21, 2021) 

f) Admin & Finance  June 4, 2021  (Committee approved July 2, 2021) 

9. Approval of vouchers payable 

10. Discussion of and action on any other appropriate items 

11. Adjourn 

The Power of 10 are the 10 most significant assets in the community identified by the Board. They are listed below: 

1. Schools 

2. Airport 

3. Industrial Park 

4. River 

5. Falls 

6. Downtown Businesses 

7. Personalization/Historic of Downtown 

Feel 

8. Access to major population center 

9. Medical Services 

10. Recreational opportunities and the 

Braves (tied ranking for number 10) 

NOTE: It is possible that members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be present at the above scheduled meeting to gather information 

about a subject over which they have decision-making responsibility. No action will be taken by any governmental body at the above-stated meeting other 

than the governmental body specifically referred to above in this notice. Meetings may be recorded for public viewing and record retention.  
 

Please note that, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For 

additional information or to request this service, contact Village Hall at (715) 294-3498. 



1 

 

VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA BOARD PROCEEDINGS 
 

The Village of Osceola Board met for a regular meeting on June 8, 2021 at Village Hall.  Village President 

Jeromy Buberl called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

Present: Buberl, Deb Rose, Joel West, Bruce Gilliland, Holly Walsh, Brad Lutz, Van Burch 

Staff present:  Frances Duncanson, Ron Pedrys, Todd Waters, Rick Caruso, Paul Elfstrom 

Others present:  Kevin McNutt, Ruth Statler, C.S Sill from The Sun 

 

Motion by West and seconded by Burch to approve the agenda 

Ayes-7  Nays-0  Motion carried 

 

Motion by Rose and seconded by Gilliland to approval the minutes of the Regular meeting dated May 11, 2021 

Ayes-7  Nays-0  Motion carried 

 

Osceola Snowmobile Friendly Community Designation (Kevin McNutt, Club President) 

 

At a recent landowner meeting the Osceola Valley Snow Goers representative Kevin McNutt presented an 

award to the Village for being a snowmobile friendly community.  Many Polaris employees took part in the 

competitive application process.  Reps from the State Snowmobile Association and WI Tourism Association 

were present. McNutt explains the Club has about 150 members that maintain about 38-40 miles of trail in the 

Osceola area, mainly on private lands.  The provide scholarships to seniors, donate to the local food shelf and 

for playground equipment, and conduct safety training.   

 

Public input and ideas (Limit 5 minutes per speaker) There was no one from the public online or in person. 

 

Reports:  Staff reports 

 

Building Inspection-Buberl:  The report is in the packet showing 47 permits issued with 16 of those for new 

homes and total estimated values of $6,370,228.    

 

Administration-Buberl:  There has not been anything received from the Mill Pond Learning Foundation on their 

financial reports.  We have received the planters and park benches they sponsored.  Village Administrator 

Krumenauer has been analyzing the proposed Village financial management plan.     

 

Police-Pedrys:  Appreciates the new building and technology that enables the Dept. to hold trainings in house 

and for other departments.  Matt Cadalbert has resigned and accepted employment with St. Croix County so he 

and Krumenauer at working on getting the hiring process started.  They will be emphasizing community 

policing (COPS grant) and including community members in the process.  The new squad is still not here. Gada 

has been certified as an Emergency Vehicle Training instructor. The Dept. appreciates Dick at the airport letting 

us use it for training.  It has been a busy month, with mostly investigations.  Chief Pedrys was wearing his new 

body camera and demonstrates it to the Board.   

 

Public Works-Waters:  Public Works has been keeping the building up and running by performing preventative 

and regular maintenance and responding to emergency for HVAC issues caused by a power outage.  The crew is 

doing  a wonderful job.  Buberl thanked Waters for spending three hours on the roof so we could be cool 

tonight.  May was beautification month and the Dept. has been  getting flowers planted, putting up banners, 

signage, and street sweeping.  They used another eight tons of asphalt for street/pothole patching last month, 

making for 20,000 tons this year.  The new deck was installed at the Cascade Falls overlook.  They will continue 

mowing ditches and parks.   

 

Utilities-Caruso:  The utility generator and dialers tolerated the recent power outage.  They will continue to flush 

hydrants.  The cross-connection notices are out, and soon it is time to read meters again.  The Consumer 

Confidence Report is complete and filed with the DNR as well as the Annual CMAR report.   

 



Library-Buberl:  The Library is open again with a huge spike in circulation.  The Summer Learning Program 

activities are getting underway.  There is new patio furniture on the deck.   

 

Fire-Elfstrom: Programming on Dept. radios was updated.  A new roof top air unit was received to replace one 

struck by lightning in 2020.  It was quiet in June with two runs. 

 

Chamber of Commerce/Mainstreet-Statler:  All of the committees are hard at work.  There will be music 

downtown on Saturdays this summer at the parklet.  They did a couple ribbon cuttings and customer service 

awards as well; the Board is invited to attend.  The advertising with KSTP is now running with the Choo Choo 

coupons well received. 

 

Other business – discussion and possible action re: 

 

Motion by Burch and seconded by West to approve the Committee, Commission & Board Appointments as 

listed: 

i. Joe Greene   Airport Commission  (6-year term expiring in 2027) 

ii. Margaret Bader   Ambulance Board  (1-year term expiring in 2022) 

iii. Jerry Viebrock   Board of Appeals  (3-year term expiring in 2024) 

iv. Wayne Tomfohrde  Board of Appeals (3-year term expiring in 2024) 

v. Deb Rose   Historic Preservation (3-year term expiring in 2024) 

vi. Angela Helgson-Mc Carty Historic Preservation (3-year term expiring in 2024) 

vii. Dennis Tomforhde  Planning Commission (3-year term expiring in 2024) 

viii. Rob Bullard   Planning Commission (3-year term expiring in 2024) 

 

Ayes-7  Nays-0  Motion carried 

 

Permits and Licenses: 

 

Motion by Gilliland and seconded by Walsh to approve the Operator licenses as listed 

Ayes-7  Nays-0  Motion carried 

 

Motion by Walsh and seconded by Rose to approve Alcohol License Renewals with the contingency of 

striking the language of “concrete extension from in front of the building” for Milk LLC at 103-105 

Cascade St.; and all others approved as applied.   

Ayes-7  Nays-0  Motion carried 

 

Motion by Gilliland and seconded by Walsh to approve Cigarette & Tobacco Licenses as listed 

Ayes-7  Nays-0  Motion carried 

 

Motion by Rose and seconded by Walsh to approve the Incidental Dancing (Jukebox) License for Tippy 

Canoes at 1020 Cascade St and PYs at 107-109 Cascade St 

Ayes-7  Nays-0  Motion carried 

 

Motion by Lutz and seconded by Rose to approve the Special Event Permit for the Osceola 

Chamber/Main Street 2021 Harvest Bazaar to be held September 11, 2021 

Ayes-7  Nays-0  Motion carried 

 

2021 Community Fair/Parade (Scott Tinney, Agent)  

 

The Board had several questions relating to the application.  Buberl asked about responsibilities for 

placement and takedown of parking signage. The Village would like the Fair organization to do this 

moving forward, rather than the Police Dept.  Pedrys stated it is the busiest weekend of the year for the 

Police Dept. and they have to really scramble to get this done, as they can’t be put out until after the 

bars close. They have been purchasing, cutting, and stapling the signs for the event with the expense 

coming out of the Dept. budget.  The Police Dept. will still pull the permit from the State for the parade 

route.  Burch asked about the budget for signs, and stated it is a lot of work the Police Dept. The Village 

Maintenance Dept. crew also has helped with many things in the past.  Burch would like to see these 



responsibilities clarified and all Village costs tracked.  Lutz is on the Fair Board and states there is an 

MOU agreement between the Village and Fair organization that may include language on signs.  The 

Board suggested Krumenauer look into an agreement for clarification.  Waters noted the preparation and 

restoration of the field has Public Works preparing a week in advance and cleaning up a week later after 

the events.  Waters will appropriately document the costs and overtime of the weekend for all affected 

areas.  Gilliland stated we need to understand the true cost of events to the Village.  

 

Motion by Walsh and seconded by Gilliland to table approval of the Special Events permit for the 

Osceola Community Fair/Parade to the next Board meeting. 

Ayes-6  Nays-0  Abstain-1 (Lutz) Motion carried. 

 

Motion by Rose and seconded by Burch to approve the Board, Committee, Commission and Agency 

Reports as listed:   

a) Room Tax   Sep. 10, 2020  (Committee approved April 21, 2021) 

b) Water and Sewer  Feb. 23, 2021   (Committee approved May 25, 2021) 

c) Planning Commission March 2, 2021  (Commission approved May 4, 2021) 

d) Admin & Finance  April 2, 2021  (Committee approved June 4, 2021) 

e) Library Board  April 8, 2021   (L. Board approved May 13, 2021) 

f) Airport Commission April 19, 2021   (Commission approved May 17, 2021) 

g) Historic Preservation April 26, 2021   (Commission approved May 14, 2021) 

Ayes-7  Nays-0  Motion carried 

 

Motion by Rose and seconded by Gilliland to approve the vouchers payable   

Ayes-7  Nays-0  Motion carried 

 

Discussion of and action on any other appropriate items  

 

 Burch commented the new stop signs at Oak Ridge appear to be functioning well.   

 

Buberl adjourned the meeting at 7:23 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted by 

 

 

 

Frances Duncanson, MMC-WCPC 

Village Clerk 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



                                             Memo 

1 

 

To: Village Board 

From: Benjamin Krumenauer, Administrator 

CC:   Board Packet 

Date: 7/9/2021 

Re: Item 5a i: Administrator Report 

 

Below are a few minor updates regarding Administration Department Projects. 

 

1. Millpond Learning Foundation Donor Wall Updates: Below are a few updates on the final 

tasks yet to be completed regarding signage and donor appreciation:  

 

Individual Room Signs: MPLF representatives have supplied a final proof of the proposed 

donor room signs. They have complied with all requirements and pending other submissions 

and Board approval will await installation. Below is an example for your files.  

 
Donor Wall: as of the end of June, no further updates have been provided to the Village. 

Miscellaneous Donated Items: Benches are installed but have not been labelled with 

individual donor plaques. The large planter has been delivered to the library but again, are not 

signed with donor plaques. Individual trees have not been noticed.  

 

As per Board guidance, no further installations are to be completed until all signage is 

reviewed and financials provided as requested. 

 

2. Village Financial Management Plan: Village staff and the Admin & Finance Committee are 

continuing to review the long-term financial plan for both general government funds and 

proprietary funds. The current focus of the committee is to review the financial position of the 

Village and how it fits with anticipated revenues over the next few years. This includes where 

projected revenues will sit and how they fit with capital and general needs. The FMP will 

likely be presented to the Board during the August Board meeting. Attached is the final draft 



⚫ Page 2 

 

version of projected revenues for General and TIDs. A similar document is being produced 

for the Utility funds. 

 

3. 2022-2026+ Capital Improvement Plan: Annual updates to the Village’s Capital 

Improvement Plan are underway. This document provides direct guidance for the Village’s 

FMP, and the FMP also restricts it. The Village has a robust list of needed improvements and 

equipment. As we ramp up to the 2022 budget this document will help guide the capital 

investment of our community. A new addition for the 2022-2026+ document is a series of 

more detailed mission descriptions for up-and-coming projects. Anticipated review by 

staff/committees will be completed through August with Board review and adoption in 

September. 

 

4. Misc. Project/Task Updates: 

a. Simmon Drive: I will be presenting an update on the grant award and needed 

partnership with the Town of Osceola. This will be in person on August 2, 2021. 

Design will likely commence in August with a contract bid/award in early 2022. In 

addition to the roadway, I have directed the design team to explore a non-motorized 

trail option on the west side of the corridor. This alternate option is not part of the 

grant award, but I feel it is better to get a strong picture of cost and location in the 

event that funding becomes available. 

b. TID #3: Village staff are collecting information and resources to start prioritizing 

funding and efforts towards the newly created Tax Increment District #3. Village 

financials show an influx of approximately $55,000 towards the district in new project 

dollars. This funding will be supplemented by new growth as developments continue. 

Current focus areas include 2nd Avenue East Parking Lot (projected 2022), River 

Street reconstruction (2023+) and Ridge Road (2024+). Note these projects and 

timelines are dependent on funding and CIP prioritization. 

c. ARPA Funding: We have received our first of two allocations through the American 

Rescue Plan Act. Just under $134,000 was deposited into Village accounts. This 

funding will provide much needed relief to Village projects and community support. 

It is my intention to have an agenda item during the August Board meeting where 

ideas and guidance will be provided on priority categories. I will then consolidate 

these ideas into various buckets and seek approval on preferred funding. Note that the 

resources are focused on economic stability, limited residential projects and COVID-

19 mitigation. A full review will be provided prior to the meeting. 



2021 Financial Management Plan
Village of Osceola
Property Tax Impacts

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget **** Budget

Tax Levy
General Fund 520,884$            525,812$          538,494$          539,188$          553,718$          593,643$          641,799$          648,217$          686,964$          693,834$          (1% > 23-25)

Debt Service Fund 433,556 448,325 500,700 556,445 931,086 960,875 930,922 930,953 932,061 931,324

TID/Capital Projects Fund

Total Village Tax Levy* $954,440 $974,137 $1,039,194 $1,095,633 $1,484,804 $1,554,518 $1,572,721 $1,579,170 $1,619,025 $1,625,158
% Change 2.06% 6.68% 5.43% 35.52% 0 1.17% 0.41% 2.52% 0.38%

Equalized Value (TID Out)** $135,840,100 $143,459,000 $155,843,900 $166,090,100 $178,559,100 $213,304,700 $220,195,961 $228,396,990 $261,019,012 $270,807,225
% Change 5.61% 8.63% 6.57% 7.51% 0 3.23% 15.61% 14.28% 3.75%

Equalized Mill Rate
General Fund 3.83$                 3.67$               3.46$               3.25$               3.10$               2.78$               2.91$               2.84$               2.63$               2.56$               

Debt Service Fund 3.19 3.13 3.21 3.35 5.21 4.50 4.23 4.08 3.57 3.44

TID/Capital Projects Fund -

Total Equalized Mill Rate $7.03 $6.79 $6.67 $6.60 $8.32 $7.29 $7.14 $6.91 $6.20 $6.00
% Change -3.36% -1.80% -1.07% 26.06%

Equalized Value (TID In) ** $164,552,200 $175,612,500 $187,296,700 $197,982,500 $218,082,400 $236,492,300 $245,360,761 $254,561,790 $264,107,857 $274,011,902
% Change 6.72% 6.65% 5.71% 10.15% 0 3.75% 3.75% 3.75% 3.75%

TID 
TID Current Value ** $32,808,900 $36,250,300 $35,549,600 $35,989,200 $43,620,100 $26,939,400 $32,744,200 $33,744,200 $7,059,980 $7,324,729

% Change 10.49% -1.93% 1.24% 21.20% (0) 21.55% 3.05% -79.08% 3.75%

TID Value Increment ** $28,712,100 $32,153,500 $31,452,800 $31,892,400 $39,523,300 $23,187,600 $25,164,800 $26,164,800 $3,088,845 $3,204,677
% Change 11.99% -2.18% 1.40% 23.93% (0) 8.53% 100.00% -88.19% 3.75%

12% Equalized Value Test 17.45% 18.31% 16.79% 16.11% 18.12% 9.80% 10.26% 10.28% 1.17% 1.17%

Village TID Increment Levy $201,737 $218,334 $209,733 $210,382 $328,655 $168,986 $179,736 $180,907 $19,159 $19,232
% Change 8.23% -3.94% 0.31% 56.22% (0) 6.36% 0.65% -89.41% 0.38%

TID Increment Levy - All Taxing Entities $647,280 $713,175 $680,570 $668,609 $886,132 $469,853 $509,839 $530,099 $62,580 $64,927
% Change 10.18% -4.57% -1.76% 32.53% (0) 8.51% 3.97% -88.19% 3.75%

Village Tax Levy + Village TID Increment Levy $1,156,177 $1,192,471 $1,248,927 $1,306,015 $1,813,459 $1,723,504 $1,752,457 $1,760,077 $1,638,184 $1,644,390
% Change 3.14% 4.73% 4.57% 38.85% (0) 1.68% 0.43% -6.93% 0.38%

Assessed Value-DOR Statement of Assessment
Assessment Ratio 1.13700901 1.045345047 0.991738921 0.930848943 0.857211286 0.7991033 0.77333895 0.752840809 0.732885993 0.713460099

Assessed Value ** 188,393,450$     183,642,400$   185,424,800$   184,292,050$   186,944,950$   187,868,350$   189,747,034$   191,644,504$   193,560,949$   195,496,558$   

% Change -2.52% 0.97% -0.61% 1.44% 0 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

Assessed Mill Rate 
General Fund 2.77$                 2.86$               2.90$               2.93$               2.96$               3.17$               3.38$               3.38$               3.55$               3.55$               

Debt Service Fund 2.30 2.44 2.70 3.02 4.98 5.11 4.91 4.86 4.82 4.76

TID/Capital Projects Fund -

Tax Increment 1.07 1.19 1.13 1.13 1.76 0.90 0.95 0.94 0.10 0.10

Total Assessed Mill Rate*** $6.14 $6.49 $6.73 $7.08 $9.70 $9.17 $9.24 $9.18 $8.46 $8.41
% Change 5.81% 3.57% 5.22% 37.08% (0) 0.67% -0.56% -7.85% -0.62%

*    DOR Statement of Taxes (SOT) (2015 SOT used for 2016 Actual Column etc..)

**    DOR Prior Year Valuation $ for Current Year Column (Example 2015 DOR Valuations for 2016 Actual Column etc..

***    Total Assessed Mill Rate for budget years 2024 and 2025 is dependant on closure timeline of TID #2 and taxation levy impacts

****    The 2022 general fund levy in the chart contains the TID2 closure revenue amount of $32,265 which represents 50% of the TID2 value at closure. So the chart should be reflective of Admin and Finance wishes. Attachment shows detail computation of the 32,265.

Budget Year







                                           Memo 

Page | 1  

 

To: President Buberl and Village Board Members  

From: Todd Waters (Public Works Coordinator)  

CC: Fran Duncanson 

Date: July 13th, 2021  

Re: June 2021 Public Works Department Board Update  

Streets: 

• Spray patching occurred in several areas within the Village of Osceola with Gerald and State Street seeing the 
most improvement with the application process.  

• Tree removal from boulevards occurred within the month of June. Emergency or dangerous trees within 
boulevards or Village spaces were removed and will be followed by stump grinding in July.  

• A buckled concrete curb from warm temperatures on 63rd forced Public Works to remove and install new flat 
curb.  

Parks: 

• Makeover for parks continues through the summer months. Geiger Park seen some real improvements in 
June with appropriate trimming, removal of invasive species, removal of dangerous dead trees and the 
spraying of noxious weeds.  

• Due to the inability to obtain parts for equipment for two of our parks anymore, Public Works is fabricating and 
installing fabricated parts on the equipment so they may still be enjoyed by residents and visitors.  

• Irrigation has been ramped up appropriately in our parks to battle the small amounts of precipitation in June. 

• Public Works has spent a considerable amount of time battling graffiti and the defacing of property to parks 
and public spaces. At this time we have incurred thousands of dollars in costs with labor and supplies 
combined from April to June.  

Building Maintenance:  

• Roof Top Unit 2 continues to plague the northern upper level of the Discovery Center with temperatures in the 
eighties. The issue has been identified by a contractor and will hopefully be remedied within 7 days.  

• Progress continues when time allows for the Public Works exterior fencing. Progress is however being made 
and the results are beneficial for aesthetics, security, and function for everyday maintenance evolutions.   
 

 
 

  



                                           Memo 

Page | 1  
 

To: President Buberl and Village Board Members  

From: Rick Caruso, Utilities Coordinator 

CC: Fran Duncanson  

Date: July 13, 2021 

Re: Utility Department July Board Update  

Water Utility: 
 Water produced in June totaled 14.1 million gallons, this is an increase over 11 million gallons in June of 2020 

due to hot and dry conditions. 
 Due to the dry conditions, we have halted our high zone flushing to not add additional run time or stress on the 

well equipment.  
 Second quarter meter reading and billing is complete. One of our hand held readers has failed prior to the start 

of meter reading. We were able to quickly obtain loaner reading equipment from our supplier and are in the 
process of transitioning to iOS and Android based reading devices.  

 The daylight drain has been repaired at Well 4 with rip rap and gravel drainage area to remedy the continuous 
plugging and freezing of the drain.  

 The high zone tower screen and manway boot inspection is complete and was found to be in good condition. 
The manway boot seals the center tube to the bowl at the top of the tower and allows the tower to move with the 
weight of the water. The weight of the water in the tower when full is over 4.1 million pounds.   

 
Sewer Utility: 

 Wastewater treated totaled 7.56 million gallons in June.  
 Oxidation ditch motor wiring was repaired and properly secured to prevent further chafing on the concrete 

structure.  
 Maintenance and repairs were made to the portable generator including fan belt and battery replacement. 
 Main lift pumps at the WWTP were pulled, inspected, and found to be in good working order. These pumps are 

critical to operation at the WWTP and run 24/7 on an alternating cycle.  
 

 
 

Left: Neoprene boot allows for movement of 
the tower structure while sealing the wet area 
from the atmosphere.  
 
Right: Operator Ryan Kenny enjoys the view 
of Gateway Meadows. 



Memo
To: Wilberg Memorial Library Board of Trustees

From: Library Director; Shelby Friendshuh

CC: Village Board of Osceola

Date: July 2021

DIRECTOR/ADMINISTRATION
This month we reopened fully, though under limited hours so as to resume our drive-thru
window for the time being, and we have been very busy! I also submitted the library’s
ACT 150 requests for reimbursement. Ultimately, it’s been a very busy month, but also
rewarding.  The community is excited to be able to freely visit the library once again!

MATERIALS CIRCULATION
June 2021, Total Items Circulated: 4,100
Open to the Public starting 6/1/2021
Public Computer Uses for June 2021: 82
eBook Checkouts for June 2021: 1,001
New Patrons in June 2021: 81

COLLECTIONS
154 New Items.  We have also begun accepting donations once again.

EVENTS & ACTIVITIES
June Events/Participation:
This month we held the BigRead book discussion, both regularly scheduled book clubs,
Virtual Storytimes with the elementary school, the summer learning kick off event,
weekly Take & Make kits for summer learning, and library visits/tours for a group of
summer school students.



FACILITIES & STAFF
Staff has been doing well with adjusting to our full reopening and we’ve enjoyed being
able to interact more fully with the community once again. We finally added our terrace
furniture-- complete with lounging chairs, a cantilever umbrella, and tables and chairs!
Our reading challenge with the village went really well--collectively we read more than
30,000 minutes in the month of June so thank you to everyone who participated!









Municipality Permits Report
6/1/2021 to 6/30/2021

VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA
Total
Value

Total
Fees

Total
Fines

VOS21-47

Century Building Team

331 STAPLES RD New Single Family Dwelling

$180,000.00 $1,415.24165-00844-0094

VOS21-48

Bria  Armstrong

501 KREEKVIEW DR NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$235,500.00 $1,453.52165-00845-0100

VOS21-49

Bria Armstrong

503 KREEKVIEW DR NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$225,000.00 $1,483.00165-00845-0200

VOS21-50

LAUREN SEIBERLICH

1200 OAKEY CT DECK

$3,109.00 $130.00165-00844-0080

VOS21-51

SCOTT MADSEN

240 SPRING ST ACCESSORY BUILDING

$7,000.00 $130.00165-00844-0022



Municipality Permits Report
6/1/2021 to 6/30/2021

VOS21-52

BRIAN NELSON

1231 COREY CT DECK

$2,097.00 $130.00165-00844-0084

VOS21-53

BRENDA JACOBS

922 GEIGER ST SIDING

$7,500.00 $60.00165-00144-0000

VOS21-54

JAIME ANDERSON

612 CASCADE ST N ALTERATIONS

$14,561.00 $186.00165-00401-0000

VOS21-55

NEIL GUSTAFSON

2600 65TH AVE HVAC

$35,000.00 $414.00165-00851-0000

VOS21-56

JOHN MATTHEW HAYTON

102 CHIEFTAIN ST ALTERATIONS

$71,750.00 $720.00165-00533-0000

VOS21-57

Daniel Wolner

305 SEMINOLE AVE REROOF

$4,000.00 $60.00165-00254-0000



Municipality Permits Report
6/1/2021 to 6/30/2021

VOS21-58

DENNIS KRENZ

104 CASCADE ST N REROOF

$30,000.00 $60.00165-00112-0000

$815,517.0012

$6,241.76

New Home=3
Deck=2
Acc. Building=1
Siding=1
Alteration=2
HVAC=1
Re-roof=2

Permit Distribution Total Permits Total Value

Total Fees
Fines

Impact
Totals

$760.00Admin $375.16Plan Review
$105.00State Permit Seal$5,001.60Inspection House Number

Other



Municipality Permits Report
1/1/2021 to 6/30/2021

VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA
Total
Value

Total
Fees

Total
Fines

VOS20-32

PAULA JOHNSON

124 HIALEAH STREET FENCE

$1,000.00 $60.00165-00817-3704

VOS21-01

Chad Skifstad

516 3RD AVENUE ELECTRICAL

$1,800.00 $120.00165-00185-0000

VOS21-02

WALSH, HOLLY

405 RIDGE ROAD ALTERATIONS

$7,900.00 $127.20165-00719-0000

VOS21-03

GRANDEMOORE HOMES INC | 1299539

281 GATEWAY PARKWAY NEW SINGLE DWELLING

$211,060.00 $1,254.42165-00844-0046

VOS21-04

JOHN LAHTI

949 EDUCATION AVENUE ALTERATIONS

$517,377.00 $2,465.20165-00343-0000



Municipality Permits Report
1/1/2021 to 6/30/2021

VOS21-05

JOHN LAHTI

1029 OAK RIDGE DRIVE ALTERATIONS

$436,758.00 $2,233.68165-00329-0000

VOS21-06

JOHN LAHTI

1111 OAK RIDGE DRIVE ALTERATIONS

$1,539,161.00 $7,327.12165-00329-0000

VOS21-07

BRAD HOUCK

399 RIDGE ROAD ALTERATIONS

$3,154.66 $93.60165-00616-0000

VOS21-08

Dale Adams

108 INDUSTRIAL DRIVE Polaris Plant 1 Remodel

$337,000.00 $2,609.00165-00707-0000

VOS21-09

JANE SODERGREN

209 CASCADE STREET N SIGN

$500.00 $60.00165-00081-0000

VOS21-10

Due North Homes | 11901077 Paul Smith

319 MEADOWLARK LN NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$245,000.00 $1,473.76165-00821-0229



Municipality Permits Report
1/1/2021 to 6/30/2021

VOS21-11

JEAN MICKUS

1241 COREY COURT DECK

$3,124.00 $130.00165-00844-0085

VOS21-12

CENTURY BUILDING TEAM LLC | 1309542

321 STAPLES ROAD NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$180,000.00 $1,150.20165-00844-0093

VOS21-13

CENTURY BUILDING TEAM LLC | 1309542

411 STAPLES ROAD NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$180,000.00 $1,150.20165-00844-0102

VOS21-14

GRANDEMOORE HOMES INC | 1299539

261 GATEWAY PARKWAY NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$210,000.00 $1,256.84165-00844-0048

VOS21-15

GRANDEMOORE HOMES INC | 1299539

191 GATEWAY PARKWAY NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$220,000.00 $1,256.84165-00844-0055

VOS21-16

GRANDEMOORE HOMES INC | 1299539

280 SPRING STREET NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$210,000.00 $1,256.84165-00844-0026



Municipality Permits Report
1/1/2021 to 6/30/2021

VOS21-17

WEATHERSAFE RESTORATION | 1099924 JIM HARNDEN

98 CASCADE STREET S REROOF

$8,500.00 $60.00165-00526-0000

VOS21-18

John Marier

409 DELMAR AVENUE FENCE

$1,600.00 $60.00165-00804-0000

VOS21-19

CENTURY BUILDING TEAM LLC | 1309542

291 GATEWAY PARKWAY NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$220,000.00 $1,519.96165-00844-0045

VOS21-20

CENTURY BUILDING TEAM LLC

321 GATEWAY PARKWAY NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$205,000.00 $1,198.54165-00844-0042

VOS21-21

DEREK NELSON

500 CHIEFTAIN STREET SIGN

$2,000.00 $60.00165-00040-0000

VOS21-22

JESSIE JAMES. SMITH | 931478

407 SMITH AVE UNITS A&B NEW TWO FAMILY DWELLING

$200,000.00 $1,342.42165-00817-3100



Municipality Permits Report
1/1/2021 to 6/30/2021

VOS21-23

JESSIE JAMES. SMITH | 931478

407 SMITH AVE UNITS C&D NEW TWO FAMILY DWELLING

$200,000.00 $1,342.42165-00817-3100

VOS21-24

ROWBOUGH PARTNER

200 SEMINOLE AVENUE Deck

$4,000.00 $130.00165-00589-0000

VOS21-25

Michael  Young

1250 KIMBALL AVENUE Deck

$2,000.00 $130.00165-00844-0063

VOS21-26

PATRICIA CARLSON

118 COTTAGE DRIVE DECK

$18,000.00 $130.00165-00601-0118

VOS21-27

DEBORAH HOWARD

120 COTTAGE DRIVE DECK

$10,000.00 $130.00165-00601-0120

VOS21-28

LINDA DIEHL

310 STAPLES ROAD SHED

$2,595.00 $60.00165-00844-0120



Municipality Permits Report
1/1/2021 to 6/30/2021

VOS21-29

Aaron Lewicki

1026 FRONTAGE ROAD ALTERATIONS

$15,742.00 $194.40165-00327-0000

VOS21-30

Century  Building Team

421 STAPLES ROAD NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$180,000.00 $1,150.20165-00844-0103

VOS21-31

HUTTON HOMES LLC | 987723

602 RIVER STREET PORCH

$30,000.00 $130.00165-00562-0000

VOS21-32

MARSHA HOVEY

805 CASCADE ST N FENCE

$1,800.00 $60.00165-00372-0000

VOS21-33

STEPHEN W BALFANZ

301 GERALD ST FENCE

$2,000.00 $60.00165-00248-0000

VOS21-34

RENEE GERMAIN

516 3RD AVE ADDITION

$50,000.00 $313.95165-00185-0000



Municipality Permits Report
1/1/2021 to 6/30/2021

VOS21-35

Jessica Stern

215 CASCADE ST N Building and Pole Signage

$500.00 $60.00165-00076-0000

VOS21-36

ALEX LINDAU

131 INDUSTRIAL DR FENCE

$2,956.52 $60.00165-00468-0000

VOS21-37

RYAN LEE

495 CASCADE ST S - HANGAR D4 RESIDE

$7,500.00 $60.00165-00618-0000

VOS21-38

Zachary Westling

410 GERALD STREET FENCE

$2,500.00 $60.00165-00267-0000

VOS21-39

CHUCK WHITE POLARIS INDUSTRIES INC

805 SEMINOLE AVE SIGN

$3,000.00 $60.00165-00705-0000

VOS21-40

CENTURY  Building Team

351 STAPLES RD NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$175,000.00 $1,314.92165-00844-0096



Municipality Permits Report
1/1/2021 to 6/30/2021

VOS21-41

CENTURY Building Team

381 STAPLES RD NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$180,000.00 $1,314.92165-00844-0099

VOS21-42

BENJAMIN KRUMENAUER

406 3RD AVE FENCE

$1,500.00 $60.00165-00509-0000

VOS21-43

MARY CONDON

409 7TH AVE FENCE

$1,200.00 $60.00165-00167-0000

VOS21-44

LISA ERICKSON

101 CASCADE ST N SIGNAGE

$14,000.00 $60.00165-00102-0000

VOS21-45

ANTHONY CABREANA

112 PRAIRIE GRASS DR NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$275,000.00 $1,619.84165-00845-0800

VOS21-46

RIVER VALLEY HOMES

104 PRAIRIE GRASS DR NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$250,000.00 $1,276.20165-00845-1200



Municipality Permits Report
1/1/2021 to 6/30/2021

VOS21-47

Century Building Team

331 STAPLES RD New Single Family Dwelling

$180,000.00 $1,415.24165-00844-0094

VOS21-48

Bria  Armstrong

501 KREEKVIEW DR NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$235,500.00 $1,453.52165-00845-0100

VOS21-49

Bria Armstrong

503 KREEKVIEW DR NEW SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING

$225,000.00 $1,483.00165-00845-0200

VOS21-50

LAUREN SEIBERLICH

1200 OAKEY CT DECK

$3,109.00 $130.00165-00844-0080

VOS21-51

SCOTT MADSEN

240 SPRING ST ACCESSORY BUILDING

$7,000.00 $130.00165-00844-0022

VOS21-52

BRIAN NELSON

1231 COREY CT DECK

$2,097.00 $130.00165-00844-0084



Municipality Permits Report
1/1/2021 to 6/30/2021

VOS21-53

BRENDA JACOBS

922 GEIGER ST SIDING

$7,500.00 $60.00165-00144-0000

VOS21-54

JAIME ANDERSON

612 CASCADE ST N ALTERATIONS

$14,561.00 $186.00165-00401-0000

VOS21-55

NEIL GUSTAFSON

2600 65TH AVE HVAC

$35,000.00 $414.00165-00851-0000

VOS21-56

JOHN MATTHEW HAYTON

102 CHIEFTAIN ST ALTERATIONS

$71,750.00 $720.00165-00533-0000

VOS21-57

Daniel Wolner

305 SEMINOLE AVE REROOF

$4,000.00 $60.00165-00254-0000

VOS21-58

DENNIS KRENZ

104 CASCADE ST N REROOF

$30,000.00 $60.00165-00112-0000



Municipality Permits Report
1/1/2021 to 6/30/2021

$7,185,745.1859

$44,344.43

Fence=8
Electrical=1
Alteration=9
New Home=19
HVAC=3
Sign=5
Deck=7
Re-roof=3
Shed=1
Other=1
Porch=1
Addition=1
Siding=2
Acc. Building=1

Permit Distribution Total Permits Total Value

Total Fees
Fines

Impact
Totals

$4,177.50Admin $2,087.83Plan Review
$665.00State Permit Seal$37,414.10Inspection House Number

Other



Report from Chamber & Main Street Director for Village  Board July 8th, 2021 
 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

1. Ambassadors –Planning Osceola Harvest 

Bazaar event for Sept 11th. Rick 

Raffesberger from Comfort by Design is 

newest ambassador. 

2. Membership – Taking a summer break. 

Need a chair. 

3. Economic Vitality- Continue to review 

housing development processes - 
checking in with developer’s needs.  

4. Streetscape- Reviewing projects and 

possible joint mural project with St. Croix Falls. 

5. Grow Osceola- 

Weeding beds continues. 

6.  Rivertown Trails 

Coalition- meeting @ 

Schillberg- focusing on 

identifying priorities. Replacing 

signage.  

 
 
 
 

 
PAST EVENTS:  

Fri. June 4th 5:15 PM- Ribbon Cutting Ceremony and Grand Opening of The Staple 

UPCOMING EVENTS: 
Music on Main St. Saturdays 2-5 PM @ The Parklet 2nd and Cascade. 

July 10th  Highwood Live 60’s,70’s and 80s 

July 17th Doug Wright Acoustic 

July 25th (Sunday) Kevin Paul Carlson's band Country and Rock 

July 31st Plum Gravy Honky Tonk Country 

Chamber Ambassadors Business Lunch @ Tippy’s 

Rivertown Trails Coalition meeting @Schillberg 



Report from Chamber & Main Street Director for Village  Board July 8th, 2021 
 
 

 

NEW MEMBERS 
Fireworks Forever- 2174 US Hiway 8 St. Croix Falls. Fireworks Forever takes pride in helping 

families brighten any celebration year-round! www.fireworksforever.com 

Janie’s Cottage-209 Cascade, Osceola. A curated mix of cottage, vintage, primitives, and a bit of 

bohemian home décor’ and gifts. https://www.facebook.com/janiescottage/ 

See Updated Directory of Chamber Member Businesses Here: 

https://www.myosceolachamber.org/alphabetical-business-listings.html 

 

DIRECTOR NOTES 

 
Advisory Council Meeting @ Horst Property on June 15th. 18 attended. Discussed and planning 

for next steps of strategies for creating a more sustainable financial future for the organization. 

Ad hoc committees are forming based on interest area. 

 
Starting the Optimizing Osceola as a Destination Project: Improving our Presence Online-  
Funded by Room Tax. 

 

• Assistant Syd helping with auditing Osceola and key attractions’ presence in 
Google, Yelp, Trip Advisor and making changes as needed. Filling in gaps 
identified with quality photography and better descriptions for what visitors 
need for our key destination assets.  

• Updating and printing new Business Directory Map 
(See attached) 

 

• Working on arrangements for geofencing marketing study with consultant from 
https://placedynamics.com/  through WI Main Street. 
 

• Designed and ordered new Music on Main St. banner for the Cutler Buberl building. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

https://l.facebook.com/l.php?u=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.fireworksforever.com%2F%3Ffbclid%3DIwAR1tlMHkn03c5c7zI1jXEiVD4v13Nwaqzr325oWHYsvr5f-_b8q8CnMH1U4&h=AT2svz4SjoUuF3WvYyBkmZwTdrXvjncTLt6xcJBVZzdHg9CL049aaNGrlRyY7YZJzG5nfnpTwliEyQCx6uzqH5WWNIoEmcUCFlUKto8ttII3m2iW_4L0VJsK2v2Eg2XP8VSG
https://www.facebook.com/janiescottage/
https://www.myosceolachamber.org/alphabetical-business-listings.html
https://placedynamics.com/


Eat
1-Caribou Coffee l
2-Cascade Deli at BP l
3-Dairy Queen l
4-Dick’s Fresh Market Deli l
5-Looking Glass Ice Cream Parlor l 
6-Lucky Panda l
8-Osceola Lanes l
9-PY’s Saloon & Grill l
10-Cascade Bar & Grill l
11-Subway l
12-Thiel’s American Pie l
13-Tippy Canoe’s Sport Bar & Grill l
14-Watershed Cafe l
36-Cascade Nutrition 
41-Wisconsin Milk House l
58-Kwik Trip l
62-Carriage House Coffee l

Stay
20-St. Croix River Valley Inn
21-River Valley Inn & Suites
60-Wisconsin Milk House Cottage
Lily Springs Farm

Discover
15-Discovery Center 
 • Library/Senior Center
 • Village Hall/Police
16-Emily Olson House Museum
17-Osceola Depot & Train Rides
18-Riverwood Canoe & Kayak
19-St. Croix ArtBarn

& Nearby
Simenstad Airport 1.1 mi.
Osceola Aerosports 2.1 mi.
Krooked Kreek Golf Course 2.3 mi.
Crystal Ball Dairy 2.5 mi.
Osceola Fish Hatchery 2.6 mi.
Trollhaugen Ski & 
 Aerial Adventure Park 5.8 mi.
Franconia Sculpture Park 6.2 mi.
Neumann Farms  7.2 mi.

Enjoy
22-Kim’s Nails
24-Studio A Salon Spa
25-Style Escape Day Spa & Boutique
26-Total Image
30-Salon 204
59-River Bluff Escape Salon  
   and Day Spa

& Nearby
St. Croix Festival Theater 8.9 mi.
St. Croix Falls Cinema 9.4 mi.
Dancing Dragonfly Winery 9.6 mi.
Chateau St. Croix Winery 15 mi.

Fuel
55-Cascade BP
55-Exxon
57-Mini Mart
58-Kwik Trip

Tourist Info
Polk County Info Center . . . . 7.7 mi.

www.visitosceolawi.com

brought to you by

Welcome Friends...Old & New
Linger Here a Day or Two Shop

7-The Staple
25-Style Escape Day Spa & Boutique
27-Adoray’s Treasures from the Heart
28-Bill’s Ace Hardware
29-Coming Home 
30-Croixland Leatherworks
31-Janie’s Cottage
32-Federated Co-op
34-Karita’s Shoppe
35-The Looking Glass
38-Treasure Alley
39-Redbird Music
42-Uptown Gift Boutique
43-Valley Spirits
44-Wildwood Flowers
50-The Sleepy Thicket
58-The Chocolate Gnome

Explore
Brookside Trails
Cascade Falls-Wilke Glen Park
Falls Bluff Loop Trail
Geiger Falls Park
Mill Pond Park
Oakey Park
St. Croix National Scenic Riverway
& Nearby
Standing Cedars Trails 1.7 mi.
Osceola Landing 1.7 mi.
Osceola Bedrock Glades 2.6 mi.
Stower Seven Lakes TraiL 6.4 mi.
WI Interstate Park 7.7 mi.
Gandy Dancer Trail 7.7 mi.
Wooly Mountain Bike Trail 8 mi.
MN Interstate Park 8.7 mi.
WM-O’Brien State Park 9.8 mi. 

Resources
45-Dick’s Fresh Market Grocery
46-Heidi’s Paw Spa
47-Mr. Deals Groceries
48-Osceola Cleaners
49-Osceola Medical Center
51-The Sun News
52-US Post Office
53-Valley Suds
54-Wildriver Fitness Center

Events
May . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Earth Arts Tour
May-Aug . . . . . . . . . Braves Home Games                                   
June. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Rhubarb Days
Fridays in Season . . . . . . Farmer’s Market
July . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Fireworks Train
August. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Valley Brew Fest
September . . . . . . . . . . . Community Fair
September . . . . . . . . . . . .Harvest Bazaar
September . . . . . . . . . . . Wheels & Wings
October . . . . . . . . . . . . . Pumpkin Express
November . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Doe on the Go
February . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Cocoa Crawl
April. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Ladies Spring Fling

Designed by PaperWorx, Amery WI

Share your experience #ILUVOSCEOLA

9

5

11

6

12

35

8

CHIEFTAIN  STREET

KENT STREET

1S
T 

AV
EN

U
E

2N
D

 A
VE

N
U

E

3R
D

  A
VE

N
U

E

4T
H

  A
VE

N
U

E

RIVER  STREET

5T
H

 A
VE

CT
Y 

RD
 M

P

P

P

P

1 P

P

2

Ladd
Overlook

60

P

3

1

2

1

4

42

28

53
15

43

48

29
34

3

27
38

52 39

4
1

22

24
30

26

58

45

47

51
14Geiger

Falls

St. Croix River

Mill Pond
Park

13
16

21

57

55

17

Discovery
Center

44

5432

49

18

10

Cascade 
Falls

SHOP • EAT • EXPLORE • ENJOY • DISCOVER • STAY

PBeach
Boat  
Landing
Outdoor 
Seating
Picnic Area

Public
Parking 
Lots

Restrooms
Water  
Fountain
Walking  
Minutes to  
Downtown

~ Legend ~

H
IG

H
W

AY 24
3 / O

SCEOLA ROAD

Osceola
Landing

Falls Bluff 
Loop Trail

19

58

59

25
7

41

62

50

46

36

Brookside 
Trails

20

31







 Memo 
 

To: Village Board 

From:  Benjamin Krumenauer, Administrator 

CC: Board Packet  

Date:  5/6/2021 

Re: Item 6b: Site Plan Review for 108 Chieftain Street (Hauge Dental) 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Background 

The Village was presented with a site plan for an expansion of Hauge Dental located at 108 Chieftain 

Street. Proposed improvements include a new addition including new first floor office space and lower-

level storage and lockers. The development as proposed will begin in July/August with structure 

completion late 2021. 
 
Action(s) Requested 

Action 1: Petitioner is requesting site plan approval 
 

Attachment(s)   

1. July 6, 2021 Planning Commission Staff Report 

2. Development Plan Set 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S)  

Planning Commission 

On July 6, 2021: Plan Commission recommended approval 7-0 with the following condition(s) 

Condition(s): 

1. Receive approval from all local, county, state and federal regulatory authorities 
2. Receive approved building plans prior to construction 

3. Receive applicable local building and access to utility/right-of-way permits 

 

On July 7, 2021: Historic Preservation Commission reviewed and found the proposal to be consistent with 
local Historic District regulations. 

Administrator 

Administrator recommends approval of Item 6b with recommended action 



                                             Memo 

1 

 
 
 
 

To: Planning Commission 

From: Benjamin Krumenauer, Administrator 

CC:   Files 

Date: 7/2/2021 

Re: Item 5i: Site Plan Review for 108 Chieftain Street (Hauge Dental) 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

Application 

Applicant: VL Design Build 

  PO Box 187 Osceola, WI 54020 

 

Owner: Hauge Dental 

  108 Chieftain Street 

  Osceola, WI 54020 

  

Site Location: 108 Cascade Street 

  Osceola, WI 54020 

 

Action(s) Requested 

Action 1: Applicant is requesting general site approval for a building expansion including 

exterior renovations. 

 

Attachment(s) 

1. Site plan review application 

2. Proposed development plan 

 

Applicable Provision(s) 

1. Municipal Code of the Village of Osceola 

2. Chapter 219: Zoning of the Village of Osceola Municipal Code 

3. Village of Osceola Comprehensive Plan 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 

Property Location and Type 

The development site comprises of one downtown parcel totaling 0.24 acres in area and is currently 

occupied by a two story development comprising of various businesses. The upper level has surface 

access off of a shared parking lot. The lower level exits near the southeast corner of the building 

and services Hauge Dental. The property owner is the same as the primary tenant (Hauge Dental). 

Improvements to the site include structure, limited landscaping and access walks.  

 



2 

 
 
 
 

Subject Site 

Existing Land Use Zoning (all parcels) 

Commercial B-1 General Commercial District  

Historical Designation Building 

Local Downtown Historic District Not Historic 
 

St Croix District Management Zone Building 

None No Impact 

 

Adjacent Land Use and Zoning 

Existing Land Uses Zoning 

North Commercial B-1 General Commercial District 

East Commercial/Vacant B-1 General Commercial District 

South Office/Parkland B-1 General Commercial District 

West Commercial/Roadway B-1 General Commercial District 

 

Comprehensive Plan 

Land Use Recommendation Use Category 

Current Land Use Commercial (permitted professional office) 

Future Land Use Mixed Use 

 

 

ANALYSIS  

Proposed Development Characteristics (see sheet T1, S2-S3, S5) 

The development is categorized as an existing building renovation and addition. The proposed 

addition comprises of a full basement (1,360 sqft) with storage, mechanicals & locker spaces and 

egress, while the first floor (1,600 sqft) has primary office space and several walled offices. The 

proposed building addition is 40 feet x 40 feet with additional area for overhangs and a lower level 

egress space. The development sits wholly on the parcel and complies with all local general set 

back and zoning requirements. Total surface area of the final building is 7,308 sqft totaling 69.91% 

of lot area. 

 

B-1 General Commercial District regulations Existing/Proposed 

Lot Size No minimum 10,454 sqft 

Building Height Five stories or 60’ maximum Addition 20’7” (existing 31’)  

Yards No minimum 

West – Addition 23’0” Existing 5’9” 

South – Addition 7’0” Existing 41’0” 

East – Variable 

North – Existing 0’0” 

 

The proposed improvements will include new utility extensions. Proposed improvements will be 

reviewed by utility employees during the building and work in the r.o.w. permit process. 

 

Stormwater Management 

Storm water management will be provided through limited swales and site grading. The Village 

requirements do not require stormwater remediation on a property less than one acre. As such, the 

only requirement is to not negatively affect an adjacent property or roadway. 

 

Parking and Traffic Patterns 



3 

 
 
 
 

Parking will be provided via existing surface lots (upper level tenants), on street parking and a 

limited partnership with Cedar Bend Church to the southeast. A larger surface lot is under 

discussion between the Village and the dental office. Anticipated design and construction will be 

within the next 12 months. No additional parking is required nor proposed at this time. 

 

Lighting 

Lighting will include down lighting in the form of soffit lights. Additional lighting will be provided 

near entrances. 

  

Signage 

No signage enhancements are proposed. Existing signage includes façade signs and window labels. 

Current signage is compliant with downtown historic and local zoning codes.  

 

Structure (see sheets S3 & S4) 

The proposed addition is focused on the south side of the building and will match existing site lines 

and roof margins. The proposed roof will be a limited scope hip roof so as to compliment the 

existing building and yet still soften the hard lines of a standard gable roof. Façade improvements 

including design and paint will compliment the existing building. 

 

Landscaping 

A formal landscaping plan is under development between the applicant and local partners including 

Cedar Bend Church. A formal plan for overall landscaping will likely be supplied with the 

anticipated parking lot development. Until then, site grading and plantings will focus on erosion 

control and turf grass. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S)  

Administrator recommends approval of Item 5i with the following modification(s) and/or 

condition(s): 

 

Condition(s): 

1. Receive approval from all local, county, state and federal regulatory authorities 

2. Receive approved building plans prior to construction 

3. Receive applicable local building and access to utility/right-of-way permits 
 



○ 書 く○ ○.“1 �> くD o) �○ 手 の ●i“1 > 霊 の �誰 ⊃⊂ ∽ の �≦ コ. 0) コ 8 ・0} 、」 �ロブ ○ 売 口 〇 °細 島 “口 調 > 「 ∽ 

"く1宣 しn ⊂) ��〇一「〕 寸心の 害毒 〇三事 +ふ 胃† 罷 岬X 罷 ∩象 霊冨 嵩呈 〉あ ○○ �し細 

○ �.ロ �> �刀 窮 �∽ �“ロ〔⊃ �○ �“ロ 
芋 �石“ :つ �弓 の ��君 �邑宝 �o つ � 
の :「 �つ の こし �二タ ○○ �こ て「 ⊂」 �‾口 す �蚕室 工6● �会 ;弐 �ここ 之 

⊂ �∃ の �三. 聖. �コ カ �謡壷 �つ a) �ここ の 
二つ �ヨ ���○○　　‾ �.〇〇〇 

こ孝 くつ �a �○ つ ま o) 二I こし てI} Ul ⊂) 十 十l} ト▲ しn ⊂) ⊂) 閤 調 �空 荷’ �ぎ⊂ くの くD “ロ くD ヨ �⊂ ∽ の くD �○ ○ 

くD �N ��ミ ・∽ ト1 ⊂) 〇 十 ���茎 

看 �〇 二l �����宣 
○ ●ミロ �二) ����ヨ �あ 

ヨ の ヨ �…三 〇) ���三番 i 〔n l一基 �二番 耳} ト▲ ⊂⊃ ⊂⊃ �5 之 

ト」 〇 十 か �〇 一〇 〇 五 ��・Uト (ノ「 ⊂) �〔う ち 責. 

露 の の く∩・ 富 。 �つ ゆ つ の ��⊂〕 (D 【0 �刀 喬’ 

くD 十I〉 U「 ⊂) ��〇 日 �○○1 ⊂) 

e ���○ 雪 I �窪 

十 ・〇} ��〇 日 ��コ. 鼠 

H ��○ ��( i-●1 

し∩ ○ ○ の り〕 (「 青 雲 ��雪 ��くD .会 (こ 高 の 

>
p
雪
の
a
つ
{
.
s
之
a
∃
e
‥

P
○
○
p
の
ユ
y
>
d
d
「
①
S
S
‥

ミ
子
宮

>
p
p
ニ
8
つ
か
-
s
>
d
d
「
の
S
S
白

O
i
t
y
‥

≦
こ
a
g
①
o
「
O
s
○
○
o
-
a

里
a
一
…
i
コ
g
r
N
O
コ
芋
g
>
国
号
o
a
宜
°
つ

ウ
ゆ
ず
.
シ
γ

>
p
p
一
i
O
a
{
i
O
コ
之
O
‥

P
a
○
○
の
一
之
O
‥

S
(
a
〔
の
‥
　
戸
之
を

も
Q
■
内
奥
一

p
ユ
○
コ
e
三
〇
‥
ミ
り
三
軍
、
Q
エ
C
」

㈹
上
る
命

P
○
○
P
①
ユ
y
O
w
コ
①
「
(
i
f
ま
つ
の
「
写
a
コ
a
p
P
一
i
o
a
コ
(
)

P
「
O
P
の
き
○
ミ
つ
の
「
S
>
d
d
「
の
の
S
(
i
f
d
i
語
「
①
h
{
)

爪
か
乙
工
ぐ
∴
,
し

O
i
索

N
O
コ
j
コ
g
口
i
s
〔
「
i
d
‥

P
○
○
p
O
S
の
d
U
s
の
‥

∩
む
う
き
ゃ
へ
ぐ
を
r

P
志
S
の
つ
か
U
s
の
‥

♂
曾
エ
タ
ン
　
e

○
工
面
の
K
-
王
¶
○
刀
董
>
「
-
○
暑
」
で
〇
〇
〇
雪
で
>
こ
く
ー
之
G
「
工
。
S
 
A
P
で
「
-
o
>
十
〇
〇
之

直
s
i
〔
①
P
-
a
コ
(
(
O
S
露
○
○
)

床
口
の
〔
a
二
〇
露
ミ
i
コ
g
S

「
a
⊃
d
s
o
a
p
①
P
一
a
コ

之
a
「
扇
ぎ
①
口
の
S
O
宮
嶋
i
O
つ

P
「
8
f
O
f
〇
°
コ
(
「
〇
一
(
O
p
〔
i
O
⊃
「
①
a
S
①
○
き
つ
の
覇
王
で
)

P
「
°
d
u
亀
一
つ
f
O
「
ヨ
a
〔
i
O
コ
ー
①
{
?

○
手
e
「
口
塀
〇
着
p
き
つ
S
O
「
書
a
{
の
「
垂
s
a
s
>
p
で
「
O
P
ユ
a
青
の

P
コ
°
〔
°
g
「
a
p
h
s

o
工
面
O
K
 
S
P
巾
O
-
[
○
○
>
〇
十
一
〇
N
　
カ
巾
Q
U
-
卿
南
口

S
u
ヨ
ヨ
a
「
i
N
①
S
P
の
O
i
a
一
8
⊃
d
i
き
つ
S
.
p
露
星
桂
一
d
蓋
の
u
一
t
y
〇
三
営
d
s
≡
p
s
i
ヨ
p
O
S
e
d
O
コ
事
の
○
三
つ
の
「
亀
吉
の
P
「
の
ヨ
i
s
O
S
j
f
s
壬
亀

一
の
幕
の
「
O
f
手
の
○
○
d
i
つ
a
つ
○
の
き
の
「
①
〔
O
b
の
①
つ
む
「
8
d

a
寓
a
O
ユ
a
d
d
締
○
コ
a
-
s
亨
の
①
〔
s
i
{
つ
の
○
①
S
S
a





工
a
u
g
①
口
の
∃
a
一

ふ
○
∞
〇
三
の
串
a
山
⊃
S
〔
「
①
①
十
〇

O
s
8
〇
一
a
}

>
d
d
孟
○
つ

の
ふ
O
N
O

P
刀
O
」
m
〇
十
±
「
「
巾
‥

工
2
J
g
①
口
の
⊃
{
2
一
里
量
⊃
g
≧
d
j
〔
i
O
⊃

P
「
①
こ
ヨ
芋
a
「
y

>
口
口
刀
巾
S
S

一
〇
∞
〇
三
の
暮
a
i
コ
S
〔
「
①
①
〔

O
s
8
〇
一
a
二
ミ
一
望
O
N
〇

〇
〇
Z
「
>
〇
十
『

「
コ
○
∃
a
S
「
①
i
s
k
a
u

」
の
一
①
P
コ
○
つ
の
‥
「
一
柳
三
十
〇
舎
十

十
〇
∃
一
①
一
s
k
a
u
◎
g
∃
a
j
一
.
8
∃

[
×
一
S
十
三
C

○
○
Z
口
∃
O
Z
S

S
U
刀
<
[
Y

○
○
∃
ヨ
ー
s
s
i
O
⊃
之
u
∃
b
の
「
　
　
　
　
口
a
(
の

口
8
k
一
j
つ
ゆ
ミ
三
つ
の
y

○
○
⊃
S
u
一
〔
i
⊃
g
巾
⊃
g
手
の
①
「
S
二
毒

一
惣
一
s
(
>
く
①
.
巾
.
S
u
i
青
の
一
8

P
.
〇
.
四
〇
×
阜
「
一

〇
a
∃
b
「
j
d
g
①
-
三
之
課
8
∞

P
コ
○
つ
の
‥
(
志
の
)
①
∞
甲
鏡
の
一

「
a
X
‥
(
志
。
)
課
心
,
課
の
一

口
「
a
w
⊃
　
召
諸
刃
十
〇
1
・
〇
-
O
m
召
　
○
丁
の
O
k
の
d
　
ミ
B

S
コ
①
①
{
Z
a
∃
①

m
X
一
S
±
Z
〇
〇
〇
之
ロ
ヨ
O
之
S

S
U
刀
<
巾
<

S
O
U
「
工
面
「
巾
<
A
十
一
〇
之

S
O
>
「
m
‥
>
S
≡
口
一
〇
>
十
和
口



CH忙「丁AIN S丁R[[丁

P
刀
O
」
巾
〇
十
十
一
十
「
町
‥

工
a
J
g
①
口
の
⊃
{
a
-
里
責
⊃
g
≧
d
富
⊃

P
「
①
こ
ヨ
手
2
「
y

>
口
口
刀
町
S
S

一
〇
∞
〇
三
の
暮
a
i
⊃
S
辛
の
①
〔

O
s
8
〇
一
a
】
≦
三
宝
O
心
〇

〇
〇
Z
「
>
〇
十

十
コ
○
∃
a
S
「
①
i
s
k
a
u

十
の
一
①
P
コ
○
つ
の
‥
十
一
の
仝
「
○
き
十

十
〇
三
の
j
s
k
a
u
◎
g
∃
a
i
一
.
8
∃

○
○
∃
∃
敦
i
O
⊃
之
J
∃
b
①
「
　
　
　
　
口
a
一
①

田
8
k
こ
つ
ゆ
≦
三
つ
の
y

○
○
⊃
S
u
一
〔
j
コ
g
[
⊃
g
j
つ
の
①
「
S
二
軍

一
窓
一
s
〔
>
<
①
"
m
)
S
u
j
青
の
一
8

P
〇
〇
〇
卿
○
×
阜
「
一

〇
a
∃
b
「
j
d
g
①
〕
M
Z
鮪
8
∞

P
コ
○
つ
の
‥
(
志
の
)
①
∞
甲
浅
さ

「
a
X
‥
(
志
の
)
諜
N
・
諜
竺

口
「
a
w
⊃
　
召
無
力
十
〇
1
・
〇
〇
〇
第
○
　
○
了
の
O
k
①
d
　
害

S
つ
の
①
〔
Z
a
∃
①

P
刀
O
P
O
S
田
口
>
口
ロ
ヨ
O
之
‥

M
≧
之
「
巾
<
平
戸
○
○
刀
P
「
A
Z

S
O
>
「
m
‥
A
S
一
之
口
一
〇
A
「
m
口



「

-

-

　

　

-

　

-

-

-

「

-

I

　

-

　

-

「

雪

-

~

-

-

　

　

　

-

　

　

　

~

-

-

-

-

「

I

　

　

-

　

　

I

　

-

　

-

1

8
8
∈
二
憲
実
一
書

ー
1
〇
倍
焼
鳥
暦
-
」
や

ミ
[
S
「
　
[
「
[
<
A
±
O
Z

一
¥
0
0
)
正
一

[
>
S
「
　
[
「
[
<
A
±
O
Z

一¥∞吉‖　」

P
刀
O
」
m
〇
十
十
一
十
「
巾
‥

エ
a
u
g
①
口
の
∃
a
一
B
J
量
⊃
g
>
d
d
董
○
⊃

P
「
①
ニ
ヨ
動
⊃
a
モ

>
口
口
刀
町
S
S

ふ
e
∞
〇
三
の
暮
a
i
⊃
S
{
「
①
①
〔

O
s
8
〇
一
a
-
≦
一
望
e
N
〇

〇
〇
Z
」
>
〇
十
白

「
コ
○
∃
a
S
「
①
動
s
k
a
u

」
の
一
①
P
プ
○
つ
の
‥
二
の
主
「
e
き
十

十
〇
∃
一
⑪
一
s
k
a
u
㊥
g
∃
a
i
一
.
8
∃

○
○
ヨ
ヨ
一
の
S
一
°
⊃
之
u
∃
b
①
「
　
　
　
　
口
a
一
〇

×
×
×
×
×
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
蔓
一
篤
憲
一

○
○
⊃
籠
竃
詣
輩
⊃
○
○

お
①
一
s
〔
>
<
①
"
細
-
S
u
i
青
の
一
8

P
〇
〇
.
B
O
X
阜
「
一

〇
a
∃
b
「
i
d
g
①
}
M
Z
課
8
∞

P
プ
○
つ
の
‥
(
志
の
)
①
∞
甲
浅
さ

[
a
X
[
　
(
志
の
)
課
心
-
諜
竺

口
「
a
w
コ
　
カ
O
B
舅
○
○
F
・
〇
一
〇
m
刀
○
　
○
ブ
e
o
k
の
d
　
ミ
B

S
丁
の
①
〔
Z
a
弓
の

P
刀
○
『
O
S
叩
口
>
口
里
±
O
Z

く
く
面
S
臆
面
「
叩
<
>
十
一
〇
Z

叩
>
S
十
和
「
巾
<
>
十
一
〇
之

S
O
>
「
巾
‥
>
S
一
之
口
一
〇
>
「
m
口



草二 ) �臆臆獲軸0 
) 星 ! �������� ��二二事 ��譲　義 　士 

! i ������� �� � �∴¥∵一∴ ���甘甘 

i 〉 雪 ) �� ������ � � ��∴∴∴ 【 

音i　　　　　　　　　　　　　I ������「園側 

「○○臆○○-正喜_〇〇一一臆 �����i 

き �������� 

キヨ,[コ 吊 �郎 覿 � �� �! 
! �� ������ 

:　　　　　　: 
園 �臆臆臆臆臆臆臆臆園看園田 ! 童! 轟 ��「臆臆」 ������ ����墓園音獲音別菓書耐 ��� 

手 車 き I �����∴ ゝ. 

【 ∴: 喜一臆し 彊 ��! ) I 音 ��一一一㊥ 

臆!ユニ仁一 ���」寸書1 

∴ ��! 】 
」‾‾‾‾‾‾‾‾葛　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　看 ������ 

!臆臆喜一 ∴ 憑 �������� 

二罰 �� 
臆す �) i � 

離 晶轟 ��������灘 
〇〇〇書出 ) ∴∴∴∴キ ∴∴l ��J ��当 I き ! ∴ †I 。 �i ! i し「音雪 l 「 ! 

) 〉 ���〉∴∴冒 )I 

.」 

「‾‾‾エ‾‾「　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　- ������� ��∴∴ ∵ ‡,ご )ノレ ・)z/、 .† い、書手臆∫ 

i 「‾‾‾　十　　　　〇 �������� �����∴ (〉 →ノ■/ン く3 ��」∴∴一子、 -「● 十∵∴ 、証了 

:∴ ��( ����� � 

旧誼‾‾」乙‾ ⊂)　　　∞ 　　　一一一一一一一一一一一命 �������㍉ 十十∴ ∵∴ ∴∴ 勢/三 �’∴言へ 

鞘i言¥出　　離 　　　　　Z 当トJ �������; �ノ音‾∴,二 二、音、二㌧・ 一言二二. 
瀬’ � 

臆　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　i ��� 

i ������� � 

管　も ���蔓 　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　÷ ����� 
ノ/i 

節 ��(の �…萱諦 � �⊂) 書 �くつ ○ ○ふ二) �(⊃ 淫 ○ ⊃ 之 ⊂ ∃ 品 評 ��・〇十〇書 ○(D 描 鋳 e聖 ����������「プ重 � 

露 「 「“南 京 之 。 否 > 一十 〇面 。 �轟 一〇 刀 ⊂ ��:刀 ○ l口 調 刀 さ .種 を くつ 「n 召 くつ 二r 葵 の ⊂し �鶉 �������������三°詳 Q)室町 モ章 

三三三三三三 
∽ ∽ ��ミ 〇〇 �=) ○ ���一〇〇 



CH忙「丁AIN S丁R[[丁

P
刀
O
」
m
〇
十
十
一
十
「
町

エ
a
J
g
①
口
の
つ
か
a
一
B
u
責
⊃
g
>
d
d
i
青
i
O
⊃

P
「
①
ニ
ヨ
齢
⊃
a
「
y

>
口
口
刀
町
S
S

一
〇
∞
〇
三
の
暮
a
∃
S
青
「
①
の
き

O
s
O
①
〇
一
a
.
ミ
一
柳
阜
O
N
〇

〇
〇
Z
「
>
〇
十
‥

「
コ
○
∃
a
S
「
①
動
s
k
a
u

」
の
一
①
P
コ
○
つ
の
‥
「
一
柳
三
十
宝
〇
十

十
〇
主
の
i
s
k
a
u
◎
g
∃
a
i
一
.
8
ヨ

○
○
ヨ
ヨ
i
s
s
i
O
⊃
Z
u
∃
b
①
「
　
　
　
　
　
口
a
(
①

×
×
×
×
×
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
　
〇
三
鴛
8
一

口
の
O
k
≡
如
ミ
三
つ
の
y

○
○
⊃
S
u
抽
⊃
g
町
⊃
g
i
つ
の
①
「
S
二
つ
?

お
①
一
s
〔
>
<
①
.
m
-
S
u
i
青
の
一
〇
〇

P
〇
〇
.
田
○
×
阜
『
一

〇
a
∃
b
「
i
d
g
①
二
≦
Z
課
8
∞

P
コ
○
つ
の
‥
(
志
の
)
①
∞
甲
浅
さ

「
a
X
‥
(
志
の
)
課
N
-
諜
°
一

口
「
a
≦
⊃
　
尺
〇
円
爪
刀
十
〇
[
〇
一
〇
巾
刀
○
　
○
プ
の
o
k
の
d
　
ミ
ロ

S
丁
の
①
〔
Z
a
∃
①

P
刀
O
P
O
S
田
口
>
口
口
一
十
一
〇
Z
‥

「
○
ミ
m
刀
「
巾
<
町
「
「
「
○
○
刀
P
「
>
Z

S
O
>
「
m
‥
>
S
一
Z
〇
一
〇
>
「
m
口



「 �����筒　　　中 

一一一ゝ �����「「輩 

i音　雪は汐 

「 ∴言∴一∴ 

十　　　　　　　　　　　　　　　十　〇 ���� � 

臆山喜臆臆園丁臆__…皿_ 

呂.「コ 轄 上旧/ ∴‡ �朝 出 !! 劃 �∃出 ! ‡ 卓 二∴ 一割 

三 豊 .∴ ∵∵ 寺 子 ∴∴ 高言∴ 「/‾-一て ∴∴ �円 仁 了 I 「i 1 劃 しl ∴∴寸 言∴ 掌 (ノ’¥ :∴ ��判 子∴言 。 ) 賢 二∴ 

u 

(の 

C) ���� 
⊂ ���� 

二王 ���� 
CO ���� 

。旧 ���� �:∴∴ �� 
「「 一一< ���� 

∴ ぐ斗ノサ メ一l 

・> ���� 

二] ���� 

⊂) ���� 

Z 1 　音 

∽筈 、葛生 �(の �　　(n 0〕∴「ロ　コ“ �軍 事戸 刀[口 重箕 蛍亨 轟 e 「 。 Z P 登 箪 �くプ 雪 二つ 刀 ○ 1口 調 召 「「 くつ 石 の 召 くつ 二r の 箕 邑 ≦ くり �くつ ○ ����○ 露 〇 二) 乙 ⊂ ∃ 品 評 �-1-1 ○くD �鵜口重 

刀　　の ���_ふ=) �����隷 彊 ○聖 ○○寸 
露 ii‾ 「¶ 霊 之 。 雲 一書 「巾 。 �轟 重き Z ���こ) ○ ������≡’持 直)≧町 で華 



 Memo 
 

To: Village Board 

From:  Benjamin Krumenauer, Administrator 

CC: Board Packet  

Date:  5/6/2021 

Re: Item 6c: Site Plan Review for 206 N. Cascade Street (Coming Home) 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Background 

The Village has completed a recent review of a proposed downtown business expansion. 206 N. Cascade 

Street (Coming Home) is requesting site plan approval for a large expansion on the east side of the 

structure. The proposal includes programming and showroom space, a second entrance, concrete 

sidewalk extensions and overall façade improvements. The applicant anticipates fall 2021 construction 

with occupancy within 6 months. 
 

Action(s) Requested 

Action 1: Petitioner is requesting site plan approval 
 

Attachment(s)   

1. July 6, 2021 Planning Commission Staff Report 

2. Development Plan Set 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S)  

Planning Commission 

On July 6, 2021: Plan Commission recommended approval 7-0 with the following condition(s) 

Condition(s): 

1. Receive approval from all local, county, state and federal regulatory authorities 
2. Receive approved building plans prior to construction 

3. Receive applicable local building and access to utility/right-of-way permits 

On July 7, 2021: Historic Preservation Commission reviewed and found the proposal to be consistent with 
local Historic District regulations. 

Administrator 

Administrator recommends approval of Item 6c with recommended conditions 



                                             Memo 

1 

 
 
 
 

To: Planning Commission 

From: Benjamin Krumenauer, Administrator 

CC:   Files 

Date: 7/2/2021 

Re: Item 5ii: Site Plan Review for 206 N. Cascade Street (Coming Home) 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

Application 

Applicant: Jane Maki 

  206 N. Cascade 

  Osceola, WI 54020 

 

Owner: Jane Maki 

  206 N. Cascade 

  Osceola, WI 54020 

  

Site Location: 206 N. Cascade 

  Osceola, WI 54020 

 

Action(s) Requested 

Action 1: Applicant is requesting general site approval for a building expansion including 

exterior renovations. 

 

Attachment(s) 

1. Site plan review application 

2. Proposed development plan 

 

Applicable Provision(s) 

1. Municipal Code of the Village of Osceola 

2. Chapter 219: Zoning of the Village of Osceola Municipal Code 

3. Village of Osceola Comprehensive Plan 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 

Property Location and Type 

The development site comprises of one downtown parcel totaling 0.07 acres in area and is currently 

occupied by a single story development comprising of a retail business. The site includes a front 

entrance off of N. Cascade with retail, storage, utilities, garage and other related uses. The site 

includes rear access off of the Second Avenue parking lot. Total area of existing improvements 

(1,855 sqft) comprise 61.6% of the lot. 



2 

 
 
 
 

 

An Addition is proposed to the rear of the building that will include new floor space with decorative 

patio (408 sqft) and an extension of rear sidewalk adjacent to the Second Avenue parking lot. A 

rear entrance is proposed so as to allow multiple entrances to the retail area.  

 
Subject Site 

Existing Land Use Zoning (all parcels) 

Commercial B-1 General Commercial District  

Historical Designation Building 

Local Downtown Historic District Not Historic 
 

St Croix District Management Zone Building 

Rivertown Management Zone No Impact 

 

Adjacent Land Use and Zoning 

Existing Land Uses Zoning 

North Commercial B-1 General Commercial District 

East Public parking lot B-1 General Commercial District 

South Office/Commercial business B-1 General Commercial District 

West Commercial/Roadway B-1 General Commercial District 

 

Comprehensive Plan 

Land Use Recommendation Use Category 

Current Land Use Retail 

Future Land Use Mixed Use 

 

 

ANALYSIS  

Proposed Development Characteristics 

The development is categorized as an existing building renovation and addition. The proposed 

addition will include a new retail area (364 sqft), decorative porch (45 sqft) and an extension of 

concrete sidewalk. The addition is designed to offer additional business and retail space as well as 

more storage. The proposal will be not be higher than nor larger than existing structures. 

Additionally, all setbacks and access points are within local zoning allowances.  

 

 

B-1 General Commercial District regulations Existing/Proposed 

Lot Size No minimum 3,012 sqft 

Building Height Five stories or 60’ maximum Addition 17’6”  

Yards No minimum 

West – 10’0” 

South – 4’0” 

East – 0’0” 

North – 0’0” 

 

 

Stormwater Management 

No additional stormwater mitigation is proposed nor required at this time. Local stormwater is 

provided via local inlets and road storm sewer. Access would be allowed but additional permitting 

is required. 



3 

 
 
 
 

 

Parking and Traffic Patterns 

Parking is provided through public parking along N. Cascade Street as well as the adjacent Second 

Avenue public parking lot. No additional parking is proposed. 

 

Lighting 

Applicant has stated that decorative and security lighting will be provided along the east façade of 

the site and will include doorway lighting and possible downlights.  

  

Signage 

No signage enhancements are proposed. Any additional signage will need to be submitted for 

compliance and potential approvals through Historic Preservation Commission.  

 

Structure 

The proposed addition is geared towards retail and will include rear porch, railing, large picture 

windows, vertical wall treatments and horizontal façade breaks. The applicant has stated that a 

softer cream/white gray color palette will be promoted with the intent to treat the full building in a 

similar style in the future. Initial treatment will focus on the proposed addition. The structure will 

be built using stick frame construction and is scheduled for completion in 2021. 

 

Landscaping 

The subject property is primarily hard surface and limited landscaping is possible. The applicant 

has stated that additional beautification will occur in the narrow alleyway between the property and 

the south neighbor. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S)  

Administrator recommends approval of Item 5ii with the following modification(s) and/or 

condition(s): 

 

Condition(s): 

1. Receive approval from all local, county, state and federal regulatory authorities 

2. Receive approved building plans prior to construction 

3. Receive applicable local building and access to utility/right-of-way permits 
 









































































                                             Memo 

 
 

1 

 
 
 

To: Village Board 

From: Benjamin Krumenauer, Administrator 

CC:   Files 

Date: 7/9/2021 

Re: Item 7d: Special Events Permits 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

Applicants  

i. 2021 Community Fair/Parade (Scott Tinney, Agent) 

ii. 2021 Wheels & Wings (Pat Lee, Agent) 

Action(s) Requested 

Action 1: Applicants are requesting approval of a Special Event Permit 

 

ANALYSIS 

 

The attached Permits annual requests tied to larger community events. Both events were cancelled in 

2020 due to the pandemic.  

 

Item 7di: 2021 Community Fair/Parade: 

Agent:    Scott Tinney 

Event Date:   September 10-12, 2021 

Location:   Oakey Park 

    N. Cascade Street/7th Avenue 

Recommendation(s): Village departments have reviewed the application and recommend 

approval with conditions. 

Condition(s):  

1. All temporary no parking signage as reviewed and approved by 

OPD shall be installed, maintained and removed by community 

fair representatives/volunteers. 

2. Park clean-up will be the responsibility of the community fair 

representatives/volunteers during and after the event. Morning 

assistance of trash removal will be provided by Village 

representatives the Monday after the event. 

3. Any damage or remediation to the park will be the 

responsibility of the community fair representatives. 

4. All other requirements as stipulated in local Village Code or 

language in the Annual Event Permit Application. 

Note: All conditions are stated within the permit language or already 

discussed with event leadership. 



⚫ Page 2 

 
 
 

 

 

Item 7dii: 2021 Wheels & Wings: 

Agent:    Kyle Weaver 

Event Date:   September 11, 2021 

Location:   L.O. Simenstad Airport 

Recommendation(s): Village departments have reviewed the application and recommend 

approval with conditions. 

Condition(s):   

1. All temporary no parking signage as reviewed and approved by 

OPD shall be installed, maintained and removed by Wheels & 

Wings representatives/volunteers. 

2. Airport and event clean-up will be the responsibility of the 

Wheels & Wings representatives/volunteers during and after 

the event. 

3. Costs related to contracted police service and traffic control as 

requested will be reimbursed to the Village of Osceola. 

4. All required dust control on local roads will be the sole 

responsibility of Wheels & Wings. 

5. All other requirements as stipulated in local Village Code or 

language in the Annual Event Permit Application. 

Note: All conditions are stated within the permit language or already 

discussed with event leadership. 

 

 

 

Note Village Staff will be doing a review of Ordinance looking for a more efficient way for sign 

approvals. 





























































                                             Memo 

 
 

1 

 
 
 

To: Village Board 

From: Benjamin Krumenauer, Administrator 

CC:   Files 

Date: 7/9/2021 

Re: Item 7e: Conditional Obstruction Permits 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

Applicants & Locations 

i. Adoray’s Treasures From the Heart @ 120 N. Cascade Street 

ii. Coming Home Osceola, LLC @ 206 N. Cascade Street 

iii. Karita’s @ 210 N. Cascade Street 

iv. Uptown Gifts, LLC @ 111 N. Cascade Street 

v. The Looking Glass @ 117 N. Cascade Street 

vi. The Sleepy Thicket @ 114 N. Cascade Street 

vii. Croixland Leather Works @ 208 2nd Avenue 

Action(s) Requested 

Action 1: Applicants are requesting approval of outdoor signage displays on sidewalk for the 2021 

calendar year. 

 

Applicable Regulations 

1. Code of the Village of Osceola  

a) Chapter 130 – Historic Preservation 

b) Chapter 219 – Zoning Article IV – Signs  

 

ANALYSIS 

Village Staff have reviewed the proposed signs and have found no inconsistencies with prior submitted 

designs and locations for items 7ei through 7evi.   

 

Item 7evii is asking for special consideration regarding placement of sign being on corner of 2nd Avenue 

and Cascade Street versus store front.  This request has been approved in the past and Todd Waters, 

Public Works Coordinator, has issued his reply that is attached to application. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

Historic Preservation Commission: On July 7, 2021 the Commission recommended approval of all 

Conditional Obstruction Permits. 

 

Note Village Staff will be doing a review of Ordinance looking for a more efficient way for sign 

approvals. 





































































VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA 

POLICE & FIRE COMMITTEE 

January 29, 2021 – 8:00 AM 

 

The Village of Osceola Police & Fire Committee met via virtual means on January 

29, 2021. 

Present:  Schmidt, Burch, West 
Absent:  None 
Also Present: Pedrys, Krumenauer, Giller,  

   Elfstrom, Cutts, and other Fire Dept. personnel 
 

Schmidt requested adding discussion of speeding on Oak Ridge Drive to the Police 
meeting agenda.  Motion by West and seconded by Burch to approve the agenda 

with the addition.  Vote:  Yes – 3, No – 0.  Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Burch and seconded by West to approve the May 7, 2020, minutes.  

Vote:  Yes – 3, No – 0.  Motion carried. 

Discussion and possible action – Police: 

Mutual Aid Agreement w/City of St. Croix Falls 

Pedrys stated this agreement would lay out specific critical incidents for which 

automatic response would occur to assist the other jurisdiction. He added that 

Officers would return to the Village as soon as the situation was under control.  

Motion was made by Burch to approve the Mutual Aid contract.  Seconded by West.  

Motion passed 3-0. 

OPD Policy Manual Update/Review 

Pedrys explained that the Police Department’s policy manual covers best practices 

and acts as a guide for the Officers’ work performance.  It is not meant to override 

the Village policy manual.  There are minor changes to work through.  Motion was 

made by West to approve the policy manual with those changes and for it to be 

sent to the Village Board for approval.  Seconded by Burch.  Motion passed 3-0. 

Vaping Ordinance Update and Theft of Service Ordinance Discussion 

Pedrys updated the committee about the vapiding ordinance.  He stated that 

initially the wording for the vaping ordinance was added in to the tobacco 

ordinance; however, the Village attorney advised us to keep the items completely 

separate.  Pedrys is working with Administrator Krumenauer on the final wording 

and numbering of the vaping ordinance. 

 



VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA – POLICE AND FIRE COMMITTEE Jan. 29, 2021, PG 2 

 

Pedrys explained that there has been a need for a theft of services ordinance due to 

multiple reports of persons dumping their garbage in business dumpsters downtown 

and in the industrial park. 

Officer Departmental Cell Phone Update 

Pedrys stated that the department is in need of departmental cell phones for the 

Officers. Among the benefits will be to keep the Officers’ personal phone numbers 

private, and to provide a way for taking photos if their digital cameras’ batteries 

die. 

Staffing Update 

Pedrys explained that the department is still in need of part-time Officers.  They will 

be interviewing a candidate this afternoon, and will be placing another ad on 

WILENET also. 

Oak Ridge Drive Speeding Discussion 

Schmidt mentioned that he has been contacted by citizens regarding the problem of 

speeding on Oak Ridge Drive. Discussion was had on the various ways to fix the 

issue.  There will be further work done to come to a consensus. 

Other 

Pedrys mentioned that the Osceola Police Department received a $1,000 donation 

from Kwik Trip.  It will be used toward a purchase of an ultrasonic gun cleaner and 

a set of spike strips. 

Discussion and Possible Action - Fire Department: 

Accountability Plan/Process for Fire Inspection Non-compliance 

Elfstrom explained the rate of non-compliance by owners of airport hangars 

regarding fire inspections keeps rising and the department wants to know their 

available course of action to gain the compliance. 

West explained that annual fire inspections are required in hangar leases with the 

Village, and non-compliance could lead to termination of the lease. 

Regarding the non-compliance of businesses in the Village, Krumenauer stated he 

would work with staff to set up a fee schedule for issuing fines. 

 

 

 



VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA – POLICE AND FIRE COMMITTEE Jan. 29, 2021, PG 3 

 

Budget Update 

Elfstrom requested monthly budget updates to track the department’s spending. He 

also expressed their desire to start putting money aside for certain equipment 

purchases in the future. 

Health Screenings 

Elfstrom requested that new fire department hires have pre-employment health 

screenings similar to that of the police department and public works employees, 

with an emphasis on cardio and lung capacity. 

No other items were discussed. 

Meeting adjorned at 9:06 AM 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jennifer Giller 



    

ADOPTED – 07-06-2021 

Page | 1  

 

PLANNING COMMISION 
OF THE VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA 

 

Summary of Proceedings 

 

May 4, 2021 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice the Planning Commission met on Tuesday May 4, 2021 at 310 Chieftain 

Street, Osceola, WI 54020 

 

Present:   Buberl, Rose, Tomforhde, O’Connell, Norenberg 

Absent:  Bullard, Chantelois 

Also in attendance:  Aaron Sundeen, Derrick Construction, Scott Zak, Covenant Capital 

 

Call the Meeting to Order - Buberl called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm. 

 

Approval of the Agenda - Motion by O’Connell and seconded by Rose to approve the agenda.   

Vote: Yes – 5, No – 0.  Motion Carried. 

 

Approval of the Minutes - Motion by O’Connell and seconded Norenberg by to approve the March 2, 

2021 meeting minutes. 

Vote: Yes –5, No –0.  Motion Carried. 

 

Discussion and Possible Action re:  

 

Site Plan Review for Osceola Auto Body – Krumenauer outlined the development proposal and 

presented site particulars. The applicant is seeking site plan approval so a new shop addition can be 

constructed on the west side of the building. The proposal also includes corresponding stormwater, 

parking, landscaping and grading. Krumenauer expanded on the discussion stating that the development 

will require two modifications to Village code: the first is a modification to the number of parking stalls 

allowed. The second is a modification to the hard surface requirement for any new parking lot. 

Krumenauer also provided a brief overview of the standard and site-specific conditions of the project. 

 

Aaron Sundeen, representing Derrick Construction provided additional context to the proposal 

including site specifics and parameters.  

 

Norenberg inquired about timeline. Sundeen responded with late May/June commencement and late 

2021 building completion and early 2022 for overall site completion.  

 

O’Connell asked about stormwater basin size. Sundeen responded that the basin is large enough for this 

proposal and with minor modification could be sized for future needs. 

 

O’Connell inquired about parking needs and whether any future development to the south would impact 

it. Sundeen stated that at this time, there are no plans to develop the south portion of the properties. Any 

future development would not impact parking of this site. Krumenauer also responded that any future 

development could not negatively impact the existing site without correction of parking in the future.  

 

Buberl mentioned that the lots are to be corrected per Page C102. O’Connell stated that this note and a 

clarification to the recommended conditions is sufficient enough to satisfy his concerns over lot line 

locations and parking requirements.  

 



    

ADOPTED – 07-06-2021 

Page | 2  

 

Being no further discussion Rose made a motion to approve with the clarification to condition number 

one stating that all lot lines are to be adjusted and properly recorded. Motion was seconded by Buberl.  

Vote: Yes – 5, No – 0. Motion Carried. 

 

Final Plat Approval for Kreekview Estates First Addition – Krumenauer outlined the item including site 

parameters and the steps put in place to review the item.  

 

O’Connell inquired about parking along the private drive. Krumenauer stated that as proposed it is 

private property and would have to follow all local rules. 

 

Norenberg inquired about stormwater needs. Krumenauer stated that the site is already within a larger 

development and that all site grades and storm has been accommodated.  

 

Buberl asked if the proposed lots are consistent with the rest of the development. Sundeen responded 

affirmatively. 

 

Being no further discussion Rose made a motion to approve with the recommended conditions. It was 

seconded by Norenberg.  

Vote: Yes – 5, No – 0. Motion Carried. 

 

Any other appropriate items to discuss – Norenberg stated his interest in the comprehensive planning 

process and said that he knows of an individual that has done similar work in the past. Norenberg also 

updated the Commission on local projects and trail enhancements. O’Connell asked about the current 

housing issues. Krumenauer provided a brief update on the status of residential development in the 

Village.  

 

Adjourn - Buberl adjourned the meeting at 7:52 pm 

 

Respectfully submitted: Benjamin Krumenauer, Village Administrator 



Library Board of Trustees
Minutes of Regular Meeting May 13, 2021

Trustees Present: Betsy Kremser, Stephen Bjork, Jeromy Buberl, Michele Merritt, Amber Krumenauer,
Amanda Wicklund, Jessica Buberl
Also present: Library Director Shelby Friendshuh, Rebekah Palmer

President Bjork called the meeting to order at 5:33 pm

Motion to approve the agenda by Jeromy Buberl . Second by Betsy Kremser .  Motion carried
unanimously .

A motion to approve the Minutes for the regular meeting by Jessica Buberl.  Seconded by
Michele Merritt. Carried unanimously.
Amendment of motion to include the name of the LTC Grant.

Citizens’ Comments - Shelby reported that several patrons have strongly complained about
restrictions at the library regarding masks.

Director’s report- Shelby is currently working on LTC grant. Open for appointments and still
doing curbside pick-up. Successful Teacher appreciation week. Rebekah is working on Take and
Makes for the kids. She’s working with school for summer school programming. Planning on
having outdoor activities but more details to come. Going to make a video for the school to
promote the summer reading program. BIG READ will kick off later this month. Book Hike will
take place on the Schillberg Walking Trail. Hmong authors are being highlighted. Planning on a
staff training day. Open to board response on current CDC guidelines. Members had concerns for
the younger children and elderly if the mask mandate were to be discontinued. Shelby will
discuss with staff what kind of restrictions they are comfortable with and then report back to
Stephen and we’ll move forward from there.

Monthly financials-  Jeromy Buberl made a motion to approve the monthly financials, seconded
by Betsy Kremser.  Motion carried unanimously.

Audit and Approved Bills motion by Betsy Kremser and seconded by Jessica Buberl  to pay the
bills.  Carried unanimously.



Library Board of Trustees
Minutes of Regular Meeting May 13, 2021

Terrace Furniture Proposal-Uline has some options for maintenance-free furniture that would
cost roughly $2000. Would need to make a withdrawal from library account. Raised garden beds
and two sets of tables and chairs a few colorful umbrellas.

Motion by Jeromy Buberl and seconded by Amber Krumenauer to approve purchase of terrace
furniture.  Carried unanimously.

Staff Training Day- Close the library for a day and have a training and catch up on summer
learning programming and prepare for activities in the future.
Jessica Buberl makes motion to close library for staff training. Seconded by Betsy Kremser.
Carried unanimously.

Board Officer Election-
Jeromy Buberl made motion to elect  Stephen, Amber and Betsy to their respective positions.

Next regularly scheduled meeting will be June 10 at 5:30 pm at the Discovery Center and via
GoToMeeting

Evaluation will be put on the agenda.

Meeting adjourned at 6:37.

Respectfully submitted by,

Michele Merritt
Library Board Trustee



  ADOPTED 07-07-2021 

VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS 

May 14, 2021 
 

The Historic Preservation Commission of the Village of Osceola met via video and in person on May 14, 2021.  

Chair Deb Rose called the meeting to order at 3:01 p.m.  

Present:  Rose, Burch, Lorenz & Helgeson 

Absent:  Viebrock & Rice 

Staff present: Administrator Krumenauer 

 

Approval of agenda 

Motion by Burch and seconded by Lorenz to approve the agenda. 

(Vote: Yes-4, No-0. Motion Carried) 

 

Approval of minutes April 26, 2021 meeting 

Motion by Rose and seconded by Burch to approve the minutes of the April 26, 2021 meeting. 

(Vote: Yes-4, No-0. Motion Carried) 

 

Certificate of Appropriateness review for 101 N. Cascade Street (Milk House) 

Krumenauer provided a description of the item including the proposed signage (wall and projection sign), façade 

paint (trim to match existing wall color) and proposed sign lighting. Krumenauer stated that the proposed changes 

are consistent with Municipal Code and staff do not have any objections to the proposal. 

 

Motion by Burch and seconded by Rose to approve a Certificate of Appropriateness for 101 N. Cascade Street. 

(Vote: Yes-4, No-0. Motion Carried) 

 

Adjourn 

Rose adjourned the meeting at 3:14 pm 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by: 

 

Benjamin Krumenauer, Administrator 



  APPROVED 06-21-2021 

 

Page | 1  

 

Osceola Airport Commission Minutes 

May 17, 2021 

  

 
Present:  Joel West, Dick Johnson, Pat Lee, Joe Greene and Max Waddell 

 

Absent:   None 

 

Others Present:   Benjamin Krumenauer, Paul Elfstrom, and residents 

 

1. Call the meeting to order - West called the Osceola Airport Commission to order at 4:07 p.m. 

 

2. Approval of the agenda – Motion by Johnson and seconded by Lee to approve the agenda.  

(Vote:  Yes – 3, No – 0.  Motion Carried) 

 

3. Approval of the April 19, 2021 minutes – Motion by Johnson and seconded by Lee to approve the minutes of 

the April 19, 2021 meeting with the correction to language in item 10.   

(Vote: Yes – 3, No – 0.  Motion Carried) 

 

4. Invoices for payment – None. 

 

5. Review of Airport Financial Statements – Krumenauer provided an update on the current airport finances. No 

additional action. 

 

6. Airport Manager’s Report – None 

 

7. Other Business – 

a) Jet fuel system – Johnson updated the Commission and provided a weekly progress update and next steps 

to completion. Other business included the potential removal of the old 2,000 gallon fuel tank and the 

related expenses. Johnson felt that the project cost is not worth it at this time though it may need to be 

discussed in the future. No additional action taken. 

 

b) Airport 5-year capital improvement plan discussion and priority ranking – Krumenauer provided a series 

of maps and a corresponding memo outlining the current airport projects. He stated that these projects and 

the cost projections were taken from the 2019 airport project petition and the airport’s project funding list 

developed with BOA. In total the airport has sixteen projects ranking from pavement improvements to 

new terminal or hangers. After a brief discussion on particular projects, it was decided that Krumenauer 

would develop a survey to help Airport Commissioners rank the projects. No additional action taken. 

 

c) Annual fire department inspections (This item was moved forward on the agenda and discussed after Item 

3) – Fire Chief Paul Elfstrom updated the Commission on the current number of completed inspections. 

To date, 37 of the 95 hangers are complete (39%). Elfstrom also elaborated on the next steps in the event a 

hanger owner does not complete an inspection. After a final notice mailing with a 10-day completion 

window, the next steps will include a $25 forfeiture for the 11th day and $50 for each following day. It was 

then his recommendation that the Airport Commission look at lease termination if the inspection is not 

completed. 

 

Johnson expressed his concern with the program and felt that the intent of the language in the lease 

agreement was to have the option to inspect but wouldn’t require an annual audit. He further explained 

that the use of fines should not be used.  



Page | 2  

 

 

Elfstrom stated that the reason for this level of enforcement is due to non-compliance in the past and the 

need to keep all parties safe in the unfortunate event a fire occurs. Elfstrom continued by reminding the 

Commission that they have been available for nearly 2 months and expect the vast majority of hanger 

owners to comply. The use of fines and lease terminations is the last resort. 

 

West stated the importance of need and that these inspections are being completed with the direct 

oversight of the Village Board and all the permissions therein. This is not a new process and has been in 

place for a few years now. West continued by stating that the need for the inspections is consistent with 

Village intent and lease agreements. The inspection is also completed in all commercial and industrial 

properties in the Village. 

 

Johnson once again stated his concern regarding the program and said the intent was not to provide annual 

inspections. He went on to state that he does not wish to provide any enforcement or support for the 

inspections. 

 

Elfstrom thanked the group and finished up his input by describing how and why this data is important. 

The review is held internally and used to update the fire truck records and notification software. 

 

No additional action taken. 

 

d) Wheels & Wings 2021 – West introduced the item and Lee reintroduced himself as the new Wheels and 

Wings President. Lee continued by updating the Commission on the current status of the event and has a 

meeting set up for Wednesday May 19th at 6:30pm.  

 

8. Other business as permitted by law – None  

 

9. Adjourn - There being no further items West adjourned the meeting at 5:25 p.m.   

 

 

Respectfully submitted; 

Benjamin Krumenauer, Village Administrator 



VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA ADMIN & FINANCE COMMITTEE PROCEEDINGS 

JUNE 4TH, 2021 
 

The Administration & Finance Committee of the Village of Osceola met on June 4, 2021 at Village Hall.  Chair 

Deb Rose called the meeting to order at 10:30 a.m. 

 

Present:  Rose, Joel West, Bruce Gilliland 

Staff present:  Benjamin Krumenauer and Frances Duncanson 

Others present:  Brian Ruechel & Justin Fischer of Baird 

 

Motion by Rose and seconded by West to appoint Bruce Gilliland Committee Chair 

Ayes-3  Nayes-0  Motion carried. 

 

Motion by West and seconded by Rose to approve the agenda 

Ayes-3  Nayes-0  Motion carried. 

 

Public Forum:  There were no members of the public present. 

Discussion and possible action re:  

Motion by Rose and seconded by West to approve the minutes of the April 2, 2021 meeting 

Ayes-3  Nayes-0  Motion carried. 

 

Business Items: discussion and possible action re: 

Update of Village financial plan with Robert W Baird  

Krumenauer stated the Village looked in to developing a plan several months ago and this is the first draft.  The 

focus is to examine where are we sitting now and where we project to be, and to identify large projects and 

funding sources for them.   

 

Fischer stated this is part of a longer-term strategy, so the Board has an idea of future financial possibilities.   The 

Village is seeing a growth spurt translating to an increase in values and additional debt capacity.  The impact of 

potential TID closing and the resulting recaptured cash was reviewed.  Projections for utility debt, revenues and 

expenses were reviewed with respect to potential future rate increases. GO and revenue debt were reviewed and 

using a combination of financing methods such as borrowing and bonding were discussed. Discussed also was the 

Village bond rating and Moody’s recent downgrade of our rating due to fund balance issues.  Strategy on how to 

get our bond rating up over the next several years was discussed.    

 

Ruechel talked about budget projections and the capital finance plan as well as the closure of TID#2 potentially 

impacting fund balances in the future.  Krumenauer commented on TIF#2 funding the RDA and that there is still 

an assessment out there, as the final resolution for that assessment is not complete.  We want to get this setup  and 

assessed this year, as we want to be sure to get this recaptured before closing the TID. Another consideration is if 

we want to use the final year of the TID to take back funds for affordable housing.     

 

The level of debt the Village wants to maintain to fund the long-term capital finance plan was discussed.  Options 

to strategically restructure debt to complete projects was reviewed.  Projected property tax impacts were reviewed 

including impact of potentially closing TID #2. Next steps are to review and consider the information presented 

with possibly viewing at the July Board meeting as we want to get this completed prior to the 2022 budget season.   

 

Update on Village Staffing Analysis 



Krumenauer stated we are focusing on the communities highlighted in yellow on the sheet in their packet.  In 

considering comparable he noted population does not always mean level of government.  We will be asking what 

their position focus is and wages as well as employer/employee percentages paid for benefits.  We will share with 

communities who respond.  There is still have time to get it the survey out and hope to have it wrapped up by 

budget time.   

 

General Updates-Any other business as permitted by law 

The recent Moody’s lowering of the Village bond rating was discussed and reviewed.   

Chair Gilliland adjourned the meeting at 12:08 a.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by 

 

 

Frances Duncanson, MMC-WCPC 

Village Clerk 

 



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 13:55 PM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:
Thru Account:Thru: 7/08/2021

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:6/05/2021

7/08/2021 Page:

183.1462200 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES6/08/2021

152.5262201 ANDERSON TECHNOLOGIES6/08/2021

242.6862202 AT&T MOBILITY6/08/2021

71.0662203 AXON ENTERPRISE, INC.6/08/2021

70.0062204 BENJAMIN KRUMENAUER6/08/2021

471.9662205 BILL'S ACE HARDWARE6/08/2021

165.6862206 CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL6/08/2021

638.2662207 CINTAS6/08/2021

5,639.8162208 CORE & MAIN LP6/08/2021

350.0062209 DEPARTMENT OF WORKFORCE DEVEOLPMENT6/08/2021

27.3262210 DICK'S FRESH MARKET6/08/2021

897.2562211 EASYITGUYS6/08/2021

208.6162212 EO JOHNSON LEASING6/08/2021

200.0062213 ERIC LEHMAN6/08/2021

500.0062214 FRANCES DUNCANSON6/08/2021

303.8462215 HACH COMPANY6/08/2021

1,918.5262216 HAWKINS INC6/08/2021

150.0062217 JENNIFER GILLER6/08/2021

30.0062218 JENNIFER ROYTEK6/08/2021

5,750.0062219 KLM ENGINEERING, INC.6/08/2021

1,274.7162220 KWIK TRIP6/08/2021

150.0062221 NATIONWIDE TRUST COMPANY, FSB6/08/2021

174.4862222 OFFICE DEPOT6/08/2021

49.9562223 PDI6/08/2021

150.0062224 REBEKAH PALMER6/08/2021

138.0062225 RONALD PEDRYS6/08/2021

458.3262226 SECURIAN FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.6/08/2021

25.0062227 SHELBY FRIENDSHUH6/08/2021

350.0062228 STEVENS ENGINEERS, INC.6/08/2021

1,346.4062229 THE OSCEOLA SUN6/08/2021

38.4662230 TIMOTHY GADA6/08/2021

350.0062231 WAUKESHA COUNTY TECHNICAL COLLEGE6/08/2021

1,218.0262232 WI DEPT OF NATURAL RESOURCES6/08/2021



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 23:55 PM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:
Thru Account:Thru: 7/08/2021

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:6/05/2021

7/08/2021 Page:

10,257.5562233 XCEL ENERGY6/08/2021

941.4762234 AMAZON.COM6/15/2021

1,768.0662235 BAKER & TAYLOR6/15/2021

3,075.8062236 CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL6/15/2021

1,531.1662237 CENTURYLINK6/15/2021

25.0062238 COMPENSATION CONSULTANTS, LTD6/15/2021

7,962.6662239 EMC INSURANCE COMPANIES6/15/2021

106.7062240 EO JOHNSON LEASING6/15/2021

65.3562241 IFLS LIBRARY SYSTEM6/15/2021

2,530.0062242 LUDVIGSON LAW OFFICE 20146/15/2021

74.8862243 OFFICE DEPOT6/15/2021

503.5062244 PITNEY BOWES INC.6/15/2021

253.0062245 POLK COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT6/15/2021

123.3462246 SHRED-IT USA6/15/2021

378.0062247 SUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION6/15/2021

90.0062248 THE OSCEOLA SUN6/15/2021

886.2062249 TL ENTERPRISE6/15/2021

1,807.8362250 ULINE6/15/2021

250.0062251 UMB BANK6/15/2021

325.4162252 VERIZON6/15/2021

560.7362253 VISA6/15/2021

301.7162254 VISA6/15/2021

168.0062255 UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE - POSTMASTER6/17/2021

611.4262256 ACTION RADIO & COMMUNICATIONS, INC.6/22/2021

72.6262257 ADORAYS TREASURES6/22/2021

432.0462258 AFLAC6/22/2021

218.4862259 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES6/22/2021

2,174.3962260 BAKKE NORMAN. S.C.6/22/2021

70.0062261 BENJAMIN KRUMENAUER6/22/2021

180.6362262 BILL'S ACE HARDWARE6/22/2021

72.7662263 CARQUEST6/22/2021

929.0062264 COMMERCIAL TESTING LAB.6/22/2021

665.9362265 CORE & MAIN LP6/22/2021



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 33:55 PM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:
Thru Account:Thru: 7/08/2021

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:6/05/2021

7/08/2021 Page:

1,140.1062266 DELTA DENTAL PLAN OF WISCONSIN6/22/2021

67.8662267 DIGGERS HOTLINE6/22/2021

200.0062268 ERIC LEHMAN6/22/2021

500.0062269 FRANCES DUNCANSON6/22/2021

369.0062270 GENERAL TEAMSTERS UNION6/22/2021

115.0062271 GUARDIAN PEST SOLUTIONS, INC.6/22/2021

150.0062272 JENNIFER GILLER6/22/2021

30.0062273 JENNIFER L. ROYTEK6/22/2021

10,545.0062274 LIBERTY MUTUAL6/22/2021

270.0062275 NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE, INC.6/22/2021

23.9762276 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE STORES INC.6/22/2021

1,069.5062277 OSCEOLA TOWING & REPAIR6/22/2021

448.5162278 POLK COUNTY TREASURER6/22/2021

150.0062279 REBEKAH PALMER6/22/2021

138.0062280 RONALD PEDRYS6/22/2021

2,270.0062281 SF INSURANCE GROUP, LLC6/22/2021

25.0062282 SHELBY FRIENDSHUH6/22/2021

124.9862283 SPECTRUM6/22/2021

809.1762284 STATE OF WISCONSIN COURT FINES & SURCHARGES6/22/2021

25.0062285 TARA COUCH6/22/2021

38.4662286 TIMOTHY GADA6/22/2021

402.5462287 TOM O'SHAUGHNESSY6/22/2021

399.4062288 UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY OF AMERICA6/22/2021

1,399.9962289 VERIZON6/22/2021

50.0062290 VILLAGE OF DRESSER6/22/2021

13,829.9962291 WEST CENTRAL BIOSOLIDS COMMISSION6/22/2021

26.0062292 WISCONSIN STATE LABORATORY OF HYGIENE6/22/2021

224.5662293 WITC - NEW RICHMOND6/22/2021

2,380.0062294 APPRAISAL SERVICES6/29/2021

55.5062295 BAKKE NORMAN. S.C.6/29/2021

270.0062296 BENSON LAW OFFICE, LTD6/29/2021

198.5062297 CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL6/29/2021

51.3262298 DENNY'S AUTO6/29/2021



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 43:55 PM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:
Thru Account:Thru: 7/08/2021

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:6/05/2021

7/08/2021 Page:

136.1962299 FEDERATED CO-OPS, INC.6/29/2021

71.9862300 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL6/29/2021

8,800.0062301 JOHNSON BLOCK AND COMPANY, INC.6/29/2021

800.0062302 MEYER TREE SERVICES, LLC6/29/2021

52.6462303 POLK BURNETT6/29/2021

268.0062304 SF INSURANCE GROUP, LLC6/29/2021

70.0062305 SUNRISE LAWNS, LANDSCAPE & IRRIGATION6/29/2021

1,887.5062306 SUPERIOR AUTOMOTIVE6/29/2021

6,409.4262307 WISCONSIN DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION6/29/2021

1,360.4562308 ABM7/02/2021

1,416.8162309 ABT MAILCOM7/02/2021

190.7762310 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES7/02/2021

3,980.8962311 ANDERSON TECHNOLOGIES7/02/2021

246.7262312 AT&T MOBILITY7/02/2021

1,848.0062313 AXON ENTERPRISE, INC.7/02/2021

65.8562314 BILL'S ACE HARDWARE7/02/2021

50.0062315 COUCH, TARA7/02/2021

125.0062316 DAN'S DETAILING7/02/2021

23.0562317 DICK'S FRESH MARKET7/02/2021

4,682.2262318 EASYITGUYS7/02/2021

248.0062319 OSCEOLA AUTO BODY7/02/2021

80.0062320 OSCEOLA MEDICAL CENTER7/02/2021

340.0062321 OSCEOLA TOWING & REPAIR7/02/2021

5,784.1962322 OSCEOLA UTILITIES7/02/2021

516.3962323 POLK COUNTY TREASURER7/02/2021

995.1562324 STATE OF WISCONSIN COURT FINES & SURCHARGES7/02/2021

126.0062325 THOMSON REUTERS - WEST7/02/2021

140.0062326 VILLAGE OF DRESSER7/02/2021

168.0062327 WI PROFESSIONAL POLICE ASSOCIATION7/02/2021

1,281.0062328 AMERICAN TEST CENTER7/07/2021

436.0062329 BENJAMIN KRUMENAUER7/07/2021

374.0462330 BILL'S ACE HARDWARE7/07/2021

25.0062331 COMPENSATION CONSULTANTS, LTD7/07/2021



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 53:55 PM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:
Thru Account:Thru: 7/08/2021

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:6/05/2021

7/08/2021 Page:

24.6062332 CULLIGAN OF RICE LAKE7/07/2021

41.5162333 DICK'S FRESH MARKET7/07/2021

680.4462334 EO JOHNSON LEASING7/07/2021

225.0062335 ERIC LEHMAN7/07/2021

526.0062336 FRANCES DUNCANSON7/07/2021

648.6362337 INTERSTATE MECHANICAL, LLC7/07/2021

516.0062338 JENNIFER GILLER7/07/2021

213.0062339 JENNIFER ROYTEK7/07/2021

1,997.7362340 KWIK TRIP7/07/2021

22.0062341 MICHAEL MALLIN7/07/2021

150.0062342 NATIONWIDE TRUST COMPANY, FSB7/07/2021

49.9562343 PDI7/07/2021

516.0062344 REBEKAH PALMER7/07/2021

321.0062345 RONALD PEDRYS7/07/2021

391.0062346 SHELBY FRIENDSHUH7/07/2021

63.4662347 TIMOTHY GADA7/07/2021

26.0062348 WISCONSIN STATE LABORATORY OF HYGIENE7/07/2021

824.4062349 WITC - NEW RICHMOND7/07/2021

100.0062350 WISCONSIN RURAL WATER ASSOC.7/08/2021

894.37V6092101 ALBERTS, AMANDA6/09/2021

1,901.24V6092102 BACH, ANDREW6/09/2021

1,815.42V6092103 CADALBERT, MATTHEW6/09/2021

1,586.20V6092104 CARUSO, RICHARD T.6/09/2021

277.76V6092105 DAEFFLER, JESSICA6/09/2021

1,251.80V6092106 DUNCANSON, FRANCES6/09/2021

269.56V6092107 FELDTMOSE, MARIE K.6/09/2021

1,139.60V6092108 FRIENDSHUH, SHELBY6/09/2021

1,773.95V6092109 GADA, TIMOTHY6/09/2021

1,061.07V6092110 GILLER, JENNIFER6/09/2021

252.36V6092111 JACOBS, MICHELLE6/09/2021

1,508.76V6092112 KENNY, RYAN6/09/2021

717.18V6092113 KRENTZ, CARIE6/09/2021

2,459.46V6092114 KRUMENAUER, BENJAMIN6/09/2021



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 63:55 PM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:
Thru Account:Thru: 7/08/2021

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:6/05/2021

7/08/2021 Page:

1,608.06V6092115 LEHMAN, ERIC M.6/09/2021

136.57V6092116 LEHMAN, JENNIFER T.6/09/2021

1,366.14V6092117 MALLIN, MICHAEL6/09/2021

579.44V6092118 MILLER, ANNE6/09/2021

82.18V6092119 MORGEL, JOSHUA J.6/09/2021

725.24V6092120 PALMER, REBEKAH S.6/09/2021

256.83V6092121 PARO, CORA6/09/2021

2,372.40V6092122 PEDRYS, RONALD W.6/09/2021

1,089.82V6092123 PETERS, BRADLEY6/09/2021

1,435.64V6092124 REBHAN, TANNER6/09/2021

1,207.15V6092125 ROYTEK, JENNIFER L.6/09/2021

1,252.19V6092126 SCHILL, JUSTIN6/09/2021

493.61V6092127 TRACY, DAWN6/09/2021

1,557.65V6092128 TRACY, RALPH E.6/09/2021

1,528.74V6092129 WATERS, TODD6/09/2021

524.39V6232101 ALBERTS, AMANDA6/23/2021

1,706.96V6232102 BACH, ANDREW6/23/2021

29.11V6232103 BURROWS, HANNAH6/23/2021

1,700.56V6232104 CADALBERT, MATTHEW6/23/2021

1,657.23V6232105 CARUSO, RICHARD T.6/23/2021

231.65V6232106 DORN CUTLER, PRISCILLA R6/23/2021

1,251.80V6232107 DUNCANSON, FRANCES6/23/2021

309.42V6232108 FELDTMOSE, MARIE K.6/23/2021

1,139.60V6232109 FRIENDSHUH, SHELBY6/23/2021

1,785.93V6232110 GADA, TIMOTHY6/23/2021

1,027.23V6232111 GILLER, JENNIFER6/23/2021

8.73V6232112 HOVERMAN, RICHARD D.6/23/2021

389.87V6232113 JACOBS, MICHELLE6/23/2021

1,612.30V6232114 KENNY, RYAN6/23/2021

700.33V6232115 KRENTZ, CARIE6/23/2021

2,459.46V6232116 KRUMENAUER, BENJAMIN6/23/2021

1,575.42V6232117 LEHMAN, ERIC M.6/23/2021

185.72V6232118 LEHMAN, JENNIFER T.6/23/2021



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 73:55 PM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:
Thru Account:Thru: 7/08/2021

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:6/05/2021

7/08/2021 Page:

1,426.13V6232119 MALLIN, MICHAEL6/23/2021

639.67V6232120 MILLER, ANNE6/23/2021

725.24V6232121 PALMER, REBEKAH S.6/23/2021

228.29V6232122 PARO, CORA6/23/2021

2,372.40V6232123 PEDRYS, RONALD W.6/23/2021

521.85V6232124 PETERS, BRADLEY6/23/2021

1,158.45V6232125 REBHAN, TANNER6/23/2021

1,207.15V6232126 ROYTEK, JENNIFER L.6/23/2021

1,306.20V6232127 SCHILL, JUSTIN6/23/2021

493.61V6232128 TRACY, DAWN6/23/2021

1,570.97V6232129 TRACY, RALPH E.6/23/2021

1,597.74V6232130 WATERS, TODD6/23/2021

713.95V7072101 ALBERTS, AMANDA7/07/2021

2,208.12V7072102 BACH, ANDREW7/07/2021

1,845.70V7072103 BUBERL, JEROMY7/07/2021

692.62V7072104 BURCH, VAN A.7/07/2021

134.63V7072105 BURROWS, HANNAH7/07/2021

1,586.21V7072106 CARUSO, RICHARD T.7/07/2021

1,499.43V7072107 DUNCANSON, FRANCES7/07/2021

369.21V7072108 FELDTMOSE, MARIE K.7/07/2021

1,139.60V7072109 FRIENDSHUH, SHELBY7/07/2021

1,668.81V7072110 GADA, TIMOTHY7/07/2021

1,042.74V7072111 GILLER, JENNIFER7/07/2021

692.62V7072112 GILLILAND, BRUCE7/07/2021

293.61V7072113 JACOBS, MICHELLE7/07/2021

1,609.28V7072114 KENNY, RYAN7/07/2021

700.33V7072115 KRENTZ, CARIE7/07/2021

2,459.46V7072116 KRUMENAUER, BENJAMIN7/07/2021

1,786.07V7072117 LEHMAN, ERIC M.7/07/2021

174.80V7072118 LEHMAN, JENNIFER T.7/07/2021

692.62V7072119 LUTZ, BRADLEY7/07/2021

1,366.09V7072120 MALLIN, MICHAEL7/07/2021

656.08V7072121 MILLER, ANNE7/07/2021



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 83:55 PM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:
Thru Account:Thru: 7/08/2021

______________________________________________________________________________________
Check Nbr Check Date Payee Amount

From Account:6/05/2021

7/08/2021 Page:

725.24V7072122 PALMER, REBEKAH S.7/07/2021

237.80V7072123 PARO, CORA7/07/2021

2,372.40V7072124 PEDRYS, RONALD W.7/07/2021

1,815.63V7072125 PETERS, BRADLEY7/07/2021

1,308.04V7072126 REBHAN, TANNER7/07/2021

692.62V7072127 ROSE, DEBRA7/07/2021

1,218.65V7072128 ROYTEK, JENNIFER L.7/07/2021

858.58V7072129 ROYTEK, LUKE7/07/2021

1,252.21V7072130 SCHILL, JUSTIN7/07/2021

152.38V7072131 SCHMIDT, ROBERT S.7/07/2021

474.17V7072132 TRACY, DAWN7/07/2021

1,460.30V7072133 TRACY, RALPH E.7/07/2021

540.25V7072134 WALSH, HOLLY7/07/2021

1,528.74V7072135 WATERS, TODD7/07/2021

675.91V7072136 WEST, JOEL B.7/07/2021

25.00CITPMT052021 VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA6/16/2021

25.00CITPMT062021 VILLAGE OF OSCEOLA7/01/2021

254,079.64Grand Total



Reprint Check Register - Quick Report - ALL 93:55 PM
ACCT

GENERAL FUND CHECKING ALL Checks

Posted From:
Thru Account:Thru: 7/08/2021

______________________________________________________________________________________
Amount

From Account:6/05/2021

7/08/2021 Page:

130,140.93Total Expenditure from Fund # 100 - GENERAL

27,032.91Total Expenditure from Fund # 221 - LIBRARY

10,100.15Total Expenditure from Fund # 250 - AIRPORT

190.00Total Expenditure from Fund # 272 - DRESSER FORFEITURES

6,499.33Total Expenditure from Fund # 275 - OSCEOLA MUNICIPAL COURT

250.00Total Expenditure from Fund # 300 - DEBT SERVICE FUND

9,412.24Total Expenditure from Fund # 410 - GENERAL CAPITAL FUND

2,000.00Total Expenditure from Fund # 420 - TIF #1 FUND

32,571.06Total Expenditure from Fund # 510 - WATER UTILITY

35,883.02Total Expenditure from Fund # 520 - SEWER UTILITY

254,079.64Total Expenditure from all Funds


